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THE HYDE GROUP HIGHLIGHTS 2014/2015 

Hyde continued to focus on its three key 
strategic objectives, as follows:

Deliver quality services
• Hyde invested £63.0m in the homes of 

our residents in the year, to ensure they 
continue to be well maintained and safe.

• Hyde helped 228 people into jobs, 764 into 
training, 74 into apprenticeships and 3,490 
residents received advice/support.

• We awarded 560 individual bursaries and 
grants for valuable local projects.

Increase capacity

• Turnover up by £44.0m: £20.1m came from 
increased affordable housing income, due 
to inflation linked rental increases and 
delivery of new affordable homes. The 
balance of £23.9m was generated from 
our profitable build and sale development 
programme.

• Underlying surplus up by £40.3m: 
reflecting an increased affordable 
housing surplus of £7.9m and our sales 
programme surplus of £9.7m, as well as 
£16.5m surplus generated from strategic 
asset disposals and lower financing costs 
of £6.2m.

• As noted above, Hyde’s sale and disposal 
activities generated strong surpluses 
in 2014/15. All surpluses are retained 
in the Group and are used to support 
ongoing investment. In the past five years, 
annual cash spent on the acquisition 
and construction of housing has been 
an average of 2.6 times larger than our 
annual surplus. Surpluses are used for 
investment in existing housing operations 
for our current residents and in provision 
of high quality new homes for our future 
residents.  

Growth

• Hyde delivered 1,103 new homes in the 
year, with 954 being affordable homes.

Highlights
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Group turnover £m 
£326m Up 15.5%

Group underlying surplus £m 
£81.9m Up 96.9%
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Introduction from the Chair and Chief Executive

At Hyde we are committed to being able to provide 
quality homes to our current and future residents. This 
is especially important at a time when there is such a 
shortage of housing in the UK and, in particular, in the 
core areas where Hyde operates, in London and the 
South East.  

Hyde owns/manages almost 50,000 homes and we 
continue to focus on delivering new homes to meet 
housing demand. The past year was particularly 
successful in this regard, with Hyde delivering more than 
1,100 new homes. True to our roots, over three quarters 
of these new homes were affordable, with the balance 
being of a market rate tenure. These market rate tenure 
homes are vital to the ongoing health and wellbeing of our 
business. Each of our outright sale or private rent homes 
generates surplus which is then used to help deliver 
more affordable homes to people who may otherwise be 
unable to live in decent, secure housing. This successful 
model of investment will continue into the future and 
Hyde will continue to be a significant developer of new 
homes.

Growth in the number of homes that we deliver is one 
strand of our three pronged corporate plan. The other two 
strands of our plan focus on increasing our capacity and 
on providing quality services.

With regard to increasing capacity we were delighted 
to be able to generate a surplus last year of £81.9m, 
up by 97% on last year’s surplus of £41.6m.  As noted 
above, this surplus is used to fund our ongoing affordable 
housing provision, and this was achieved on the back of a 
buoyant housing market in our areas of operation as well 
as us having an ongoing focus on being efficient in our 
day to day operations. While our surplus is large, the level 
of our investment is even larger, with, on average, more 
than 2.6 times the level of our surplus being invested each 
year in the homes of our current and future residents.

One way in which we improved our efficiency last year 
was through the launch of our active asset management 
strategy, which went live in April 2014. For Hyde to 
succeed, it is important our assets make enough money 
so we can afford to maintain them and continue to provide 
more affordable housing. By properly assessing our 
assets based upon sound intelligence, we are improving 
our overall financial performance as well as delivering on 
our third business priority – to provide quality services to 
our customers.

Meeting our own high standards in regard to customer 
service presented a challenge last year, particularly 
following a re-procurement of our property repairs and 
maintenance service providers. This re-procurement 
was delivered to improve both our service and efficiency 
and it was pleasing that we finished the year in a strong 
position.  We look forward to 2015/16 with confidence.  

The past year saw us say goodbye to Julie Hollyman and 
Steve White, who served as Hyde’s previous Chair and 
Chief Executive for 10 and 4 years respectively. They 
served our Group with distinction and we would like to 
thank them for their excellent contribution. Julie and Steve 
shared a great affiliation with Hyde’s values and showed 
tremendous commitment to our residents.  

While on the subject of excellent contributions, the 
delivery of Hyde’s growth, capacity and service could not 
have been achieved without the hard work and passion of 
our people.  We are proud of the way our staff continue 
to respond to the challenges faced by our sector and we 
would like to thank them all for their commitment and 
dedication.  

With challenge comes opportunity and with Hyde in a 
position of strength we look forward to meeting these 
challenges and capitalising on these opportunities in the 
years to come.
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Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review

Business Overview
The Hyde Group (the “Group”) is one of the UK’s leading 
and award winning providers of affordable housing in 
London, the South East of England and the Midlands. The 
Group is primarily a group of ‘not-for-profit’ organisations 
(headed by Hyde Housing Association Limited (the 
“Association”)) whose main business is the provision 
and management of good quality accommodation at 
affordable rents. As at 31 March 2015, the Group owned 
41,880 homes (2014: 41,829) and managed a further 
7,766 homes (2014: 7,698) under Private Finance Initiative 
contracts with both the London Borough of Islington and 
the London Borough of Brent.

Introduction Activities
As shown in notes 2 and 3 of the financial statements, the 
Group is a diverse business operating in the following key 
streams:

l General needs housing for rent and affordable rental 
tenure homes, primarily by individuals/families who are 
unable to rent or buy at open market rates; 

l Supported housing; 

l Low cost home ownership, primarily shared ownership, 
whereby residents purchase a share in the equity of 
their homes and pay rent to the housing association on 
the remainder; 

l Temporary social housing; 

l Student and health accommodation;

l Market and intermediate rent;

l Leasehold management;

l Outright sale to the private market.

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

General Needs 26,302 26,770 18,046 18,488

Affordable Rental Tenure 1,203 547 1,110 511

Supported Housing 3,545 3,897 3,077 3,429

Shared Ownership 3,394 3,420 3,207 3,225

Temporary Social Housing 990 1,129 990 765

Health & Education Accommodation 822 821 822 821

Intermediate Market Rent 381 382 330 331

Other Rented Properties 363 363 361 361

Leaseholders 4,880 4,500 3,200 2,853

Total Owned 41,880 41,829 31,143 30,784

Contract Management 7,766 7,698 7,420 7,352

Total 49,646 49,527 38,563 38,136
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The Money House helps  
young people manage their 
finances better.

A strong team is essential to 
our success.
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Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review

Objectives Achievements in 2014/15 KPI targets in 2014/15 Projects planned in 
2015/16 Long term targets

Deliver Quality Services
l Maintain or improve income collection, whilst offering 

advice and support to those in arrears;
l Agree service offers for all tenures and deliver our 

services in line with these standards;
l Deliver services which make a lasting difference to 

the wellbeing of residents and the wider community, 
in line with published strategies;

l Nurture a high performing, engaged workforce; 
ensuring we have the right people for each role.

l Sustained income collection in the face of welfare 
reform;

l Launched one customer services phone number and 
Hyde mobile app;

l Delivered a range of services to residents via our Hyde 
Plus division, helping them to tackle debt, find jobs, get 
active on line and engage in activities which strengthen 
the community;

l Won award for Hyde’s Resident Engagement Strategy;
l Won several awards for employee benefits scheme.

l Rent arrears <_ 4.2%;
l Compliance of properties with 

gas certificates 100%;
l Satisfaction with repairs service >_ 

89%;
l Satisfaction with complaints 

service  
 >_ 65%;

l Calls handled within service level 
agreement >_ 85%.

l To continue to improve online services, 
supporting enhanced access options 
and efficiency of customer services;

l To deliver a mobile working solution 
for resident services teams, helping to 
improve customer satisfaction;

l To continue to embed changes made 
to repairs and maintenance services in 
2014/15, ensuring anticipated benefits 
and improvements are realised.

l To reach top quartile G15 
performance for repairs;

l To be recognised as providing 
good landlord services;

l To be recognised as a 
provider of services that 
deliver social value;

l To achieve top quartile 
employee satisfaction;

l To maintain IiP Gold status.

Increase Capacity
l Reduce waste and become even more efficient in the 

way we deliver current services;
l Minimise build costs and maximise value in the way 

we build new homes;
l Increase income through sales, private renting or 

selling services;
l Maximise asset value through careful asset 

management;
l Consolidate operating geography and markets 

through ‘good fit’ swaps and mergers;
l Use savings and extra financial capacity to invest in 

services and build more new homes.

l Delivered a surplus of £81.9m. For every £1 of surplus 
that Hyde has made in the past five years, c.£2.60 was 
invested into improving/building homes;

l Developed an asset management framework, which 
will help Hyde to achieve better return on assets, make 
more informed decisions and reduce maintenance 
costs;

l Continued to put downward pressure on the Group’s 
cost of capital and delivered savings through the 
Group’s interest rate hedging programme for the sixth 
year in a row;

l Reduced the risk of receiving cash margin calls on 
our portfolio of stand-alone interest rate swaps by 
proactively increasing pools of security with our swaps 
counterparties;

l Delivered procurement savings in excess of £5m which 
will be delivered over the life of the contracts.

l Void rent loss <_ 0.8%; 
l Net operating margins >_ 30%;
l Interest cover >_ 1.1;
l Margin before asset sales >_ 8%;
l Gearing <_ 80%;
l Return on assets >_ 3%.

l To continue to improve operational 
efficiency, delivering financial savings;

l To continue to improve the Group’s 
IT systems, enhancing capability and 
usefulness;

l To re-procure Estate Services offering 
opportunities to deliver greater value 
for money to our residents;

l To implement the Group’s office 
strategy, maximising effectiveness, 
efficiency and value for money.

l To continue to improve 
operational efficiency, 
evidenced by an underlying 
operating cash flow greater 
than or equal to the Group’s 
cash interest cost;

l To maintain rental income 
stream.

Build More Homes
l Build new homes to help increase supply of all 

tenures and ease housing pressures;
l Work collaboratively with partners to deliver new 

supply;
l Develop more housing for sale and private rent in 

order to subsidise the development of affordable 
homes.

l Explore suitable opportunities for growth through 
partnerships, mergers and acquisitions.

l Completed the build of 1,103 properties during the year, 
with c.3,600 people housed in an affordable home;

l Customer satisfaction with new homes (of all tenures) 
was a sector leading 88%;

l Won several awards for housing developments, 
including best residential development award in East 
Sussex for our Super B development in Brighton.

l 100% start on site homes against 
forecast;

l 100% practical completions 
against forecast; 

l 100% outright sales against 
target;

l 100% shared ownership sales 
against target.

l To commence delivery of our 2015/18 
HCA / GLA grant funded programme;

l To identify and deliver stock swaps to 
support growth and efficiency;

l To continue exploration of modern 
methods of construction (MMC) and 
alternative procurement methods;

l To continue to identify opportunities to 
work in partnership with local authorities.

l To continue to build new 
homes of varying tenure.

Vision, Mission, Strategy and Objectives

The Group’s vision is to make a lasting difference to 
people’s lives. Our mission is to provide our customers 
with good quality housing which is managed to a good 
standard; and build homes, places and communities 
where all have the opportunity to prosper. 

During 2014/15, the organisation revised the corporate 
plan in order to ensure the objectives continued to be 
aligned to the Group’s vision and mission. 
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Objectives Achievements in 2014/15 KPI targets in 2014/15 Projects planned in 
2015/16 Long term targets

Deliver Quality Services
l Maintain or improve income collection, whilst offering 

advice and support to those in arrears;
l Agree service offers for all tenures and deliver our 

services in line with these standards;
l Deliver services which make a lasting difference to 

the wellbeing of residents and the wider community, 
in line with published strategies;

l Nurture a high performing, engaged workforce; 
ensuring we have the right people for each role.

l Sustained income collection in the face of welfare 
reform;

l Launched one customer services phone number and 
Hyde mobile app;

l Delivered a range of services to residents via our Hyde 
Plus division, helping them to tackle debt, find jobs, get 
active on line and engage in activities which strengthen 
the community;

l Won award for Hyde’s Resident Engagement Strategy;
l Won several awards for employee benefits scheme.

l Rent arrears <_ 4.2%;
l Compliance of properties with 

gas certificates 100%;
l Satisfaction with repairs service >_ 

89%;
l Satisfaction with complaints 

service  
 >_ 65%;

l Calls handled within service level 
agreement >_ 85%.

l To continue to improve online services, 
supporting enhanced access options 
and efficiency of customer services;

l To deliver a mobile working solution 
for resident services teams, helping to 
improve customer satisfaction;

l To continue to embed changes made 
to repairs and maintenance services in 
2014/15, ensuring anticipated benefits 
and improvements are realised.

l To reach top quartile G15 
performance for repairs;

l To be recognised as providing 
good landlord services;

l To be recognised as a 
provider of services that 
deliver social value;

l To achieve top quartile 
employee satisfaction;

l To maintain IiP Gold status.

Increase Capacity
l Reduce waste and become even more efficient in the 

way we deliver current services;
l Minimise build costs and maximise value in the way 

we build new homes;
l Increase income through sales, private renting or 

selling services;
l Maximise asset value through careful asset 

management;
l Consolidate operating geography and markets 

through ‘good fit’ swaps and mergers;
l Use savings and extra financial capacity to invest in 

services and build more new homes.

l Delivered a surplus of £81.9m. For every £1 of surplus 
that Hyde has made in the past five years, c.£2.60 was 
invested into improving/building homes;

l Developed an asset management framework, which 
will help Hyde to achieve better return on assets, make 
more informed decisions and reduce maintenance 
costs;

l Continued to put downward pressure on the Group’s 
cost of capital and delivered savings through the 
Group’s interest rate hedging programme for the sixth 
year in a row;

l Reduced the risk of receiving cash margin calls on 
our portfolio of stand-alone interest rate swaps by 
proactively increasing pools of security with our swaps 
counterparties;

l Delivered procurement savings in excess of £5m which 
will be delivered over the life of the contracts.

l Void rent loss <_ 0.8%; 
l Net operating margins >_ 30%;
l Interest cover >_ 1.1;
l Margin before asset sales >_ 8%;
l Gearing <_ 80%;
l Return on assets >_ 3%.

l To continue to improve operational 
efficiency, delivering financial savings;

l To continue to improve the Group’s 
IT systems, enhancing capability and 
usefulness;

l To re-procure Estate Services offering 
opportunities to deliver greater value 
for money to our residents;

l To implement the Group’s office 
strategy, maximising effectiveness, 
efficiency and value for money.

l To continue to improve 
operational efficiency, 
evidenced by an underlying 
operating cash flow greater 
than or equal to the Group’s 
cash interest cost;

l To maintain rental income 
stream.

Build More Homes
l Build new homes to help increase supply of all 

tenures and ease housing pressures;
l Work collaboratively with partners to deliver new 

supply;
l Develop more housing for sale and private rent in 

order to subsidise the development of affordable 
homes.

l Explore suitable opportunities for growth through 
partnerships, mergers and acquisitions.

l Completed the build of 1,103 properties during the year, 
with c.3,600 people housed in an affordable home;

l Customer satisfaction with new homes (of all tenures) 
was a sector leading 88%;

l Won several awards for housing developments, 
including best residential development award in East 
Sussex for our Super B development in Brighton.

l 100% start on site homes against 
forecast;

l 100% practical completions 
against forecast; 

l 100% outright sales against 
target;

l 100% shared ownership sales 
against target.

l To commence delivery of our 2015/18 
HCA / GLA grant funded programme;

l To identify and deliver stock swaps to 
support growth and efficiency;

l To continue exploration of modern 
methods of construction (MMC) and 
alternative procurement methods;

l To continue to identify opportunities to 
work in partnership with local authorities.

l To continue to build new 
homes of varying tenure.

The Group’s corporate objectives from April 2014 are 
to:
l Deliver quality services;
l Increase capacity;
l Build more homes.

The corporate plan is a three year plan which will allow 
us to better adapt the business to changes in market 
conditions and the economic environment. The table 
below details our main objectives and how the Group 
intends to meet those objectives. Actual Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) results are shown on page 12.
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Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review

2014/15 proved to be a challenging year in delivering our 
quality services objective, as we worked hard with our 
new partner repairs contractors to make the transition to 
a new service, following re-procurement and restructure. 
Customer satisfaction dipped by an average 2% over the 
year and complaints rose. Teamwork and the support 
of our involved residents has meant we have now 
recovered performance levels before the change, and 
are on course to deliver the service improvements we 
set out to achieve during 2015/16. Early signs of this 
improvement have been seen in a significant rise in calls 
handled within our Service Level Agreement (SLA).

The impact of the repairs service transition was also felt 
in the management of empty homes. However we are 
now achieving record low levels of vacancies and are 
set to substantially reduce void loss in the year ahead 
through improved processes and delivery structures.

Our income team has successfully continued to manage 
the impact of welfare reform on residents and a growing 
and diverse portfolio of tenures, achieving a reduction in 
year-on-year arrears at 3.9% of rental turnover.

We received more than 3,000 reports of anti-social 
behaviour (ASB) from residents and achieved customer 
satisfaction levels of 67%. ASB is not an easy service 
area but our review of the scope of service and 
reorganisation of delivery is expected to improve on this 
in 2015/16.

We have laid the foundations for “Hyde on Demand” - 
Hyde’s programme to develop more agile and flexible 
services through new technology. The Hyde App was 
launched in November 2014 and is already used by more 
than 500 residents. We will be investing in our strategic 
self-service solution during 2015/16, and this will allow 
residents to fully complete key service transactions on-
line or via a mobile device. 

Hyde is investing in new mobile working technology to 
support more efficient ways of working and to transform 
service delivery in homes and communities. We will see 
the ground work we have laid in 2014/15 come to fruition 
in 2015/16.

Housing services

Performance indicator Target measure Actual measure 
31 March 2015

Actual measure 
31 March 2014

Void rent loss 0.8% 1.1% 1.1%

Rent arrears 4.2% 3.9% 4.0%

Overall satisfaction with ASB Handling 75% 67% 67%

Calls handled within SLA 85% 84% 65%

Repairs completed right first time 86% 82% 83%

Resident satisfaction - overall 84% 73% 75%

Resident satisfaction - with repairs 89% 78% 78%

Overall satisfaction with complaints 65% 23% 35%

Compliance of properties with gas certificates 100% 100% 99.7%
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The Group’s overall investment in stock renewal 
and maintenance during the year was £63.0m, of 
which £24.7m was capitalised (2014: £65.2m, of 
which £26.9m was capitalised). In line with our stock 
investment plan, £38.3m (2014: £38.3m) was invested 
in routine, planned and non-capital maintenance to 
maintain our housing stock to optimal levels. This 
investment reflects Hyde’s desire to provide high quality 
homes and communities in which to live and to maintain 
and enhance the value of our assets. 

A new energy efficiency strategy was adopted which 
has delivered £0.5m investment into properties with 
low thermal insulation levels in 2014/15. We are set 
to raise efficiency in the stock overall with a funding 
commitment of £1m a year to make all properties above 
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) 60 by 2015.

Implementation of our new Asset Management 
strategy progressed with the adoption of our Asset 
Intelligence Model, following testing and piloting, and 
the development of Local Asset Management Plans to 
assist with strategic options appraisal. This, together 
with revised governance and processes, means we have 
the tools in place to deliver on targets for improving the 
return on assets.

New cleaning and grounds maintenance contracts 
across Hyde’s estate will be implemented during 
2015/16. These will offer a consistent set of standards 
for all customers, together with anticipated savings in 
service costs. 

Figure 1.1 Repairs Spend
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Albion Road (Clock 
Tower Court).

Hyde continues to invest significantly in Hyde Plus, 
providing services which help residents sustain their 
tenancies and access opportunities. This included 
helping 228 people into jobs, 764 into training and 
providing 3,490 residents with advice and support. 
Additionally, 74 apprenticeships were secured through 
our maintenance contractors and 135 young tenants 
improved their financial management skills through our 
“Money House” project. 

We also continued with our successful digital inclusion 
project, supporting 494 residents to confidently use 
on-line services, and awarded 560 individual bursaries 
and grants for valuable local projects. This included 
the establishment of a Group-wide community grants 
programme to harness the potential of residents and 
local groups to design and deliver their own community 
projects. Cash4Communities was launched in August 
2014, with 140 grants awarded and a very successful 
three day residential training course for 55 ‘Change 
Champions’ held in March 2015. 

Another project, the International Youth Ambassador 
Programme, involved 80 young people from across 
our estates in Brent receiving sports training in football 
skills, golf and multi-sports. Twenty went on to receive 
vocational training including youth work, leadership 
skills, mentoring and accredited coaching. The project 
culminated with three young people being selected 
by their peers to visit Grenada to run sports sessions 
with young people with disabilities, as part of the Jason 
Roberts Foundation programme. 

Other achievements and initiatives include:
l We commenced our disinvestment from poorly 

performing non core activities including private sector 
leasing 

l We secured over 99% of income against Hyde’s Private 
Finance Initiative (PFI) contracts through strong contract 
performance in year.

l We sustained the Brent Co-Efficient PFI contract by 
renegotiating the project agreement.

l We received a Tenant Participation Advisory Service 
(TPAS) award for our Annual Report to Residents

l We chaired the Connected Housing Initiative; a group of 
13 housing associations working with the Government 
Digital Service, National Housing Federation and Digital 
Unite to enable internet access for all social housing 
residents 

l We are targeting a reduction in void losses across Hyde 
of £2m a year.

l We are targeting savings of between 5-25% on estate 
services contracts across several large developments in 
London while maintaining quality standards.
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The Open Market development in 
Brighton has been nominated for 
numerous industry awards.
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Given that Hyde’s historical focus has been on the 
provision and management of affordable housing, an 
important element of being able to build such stock 
has been the receipt of government grant. In common 
with the rest of the housing association sector, the 
Group has seen the amount of grant made available to 
fund affordable housing reduce significantly in recent 
years. Therefore, in order to be able to continue to 
build affordable housing, Hyde has entered into more 
commercial activities to generate returns which can 

Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review

The Business Development team promotes the growth 
of the Hyde Group to meet its social purposes. The 
team’s main objective is to build more homes in order to 
meet the UK’s housing need. 2014/15 saw the delivery 
of this objective with the Group completing 1,103 new 
homes. This will continue into 2015/16 and beyond as 
the development team builds upon the range of existing 
initiatives to enable the Group to provide homes to those 
who need them. 

Of the 1,103 new homes delivered in the year, 954 were 
affordable. As at the year end we had 5,942 homes 
earmarked for delivery over the course of the next five 
years, including 3,402 affordable homes which will 
enable us to fulfil our objective of building homes for 
social purpose. 

Business development

Figure 1.2 Increase in homes
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This build programme, coupled with other growth 
initiatives such as stock acquisitions and stock swaps, 
has enabled the Group to provide housing to more 
people than ever before, as the chart below shows.  
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help supplement affordable delivery. Hyde is well placed 
to be able to do this, given that it has access to the 
capital markets and has a strong governance framework 
in place to manage the risks associated with such 
commercial activity. We will therefore continue to seek 
opportunities to supplement our core programme.

In terms of our commitment to the GLA and the HCA, 
the Group delivered on its targets for the 2011/15 
programme and we have started delivering our 
obligations for the 2015/18 programme. Our stakeholder 
relationships with both the GLA and HCA remain very 
strong. We are pleased with the progress we have 
made with our programme delivery and management, 
as well as thought leadership in the sector, specifically 
on Shared Ownership and Modern Methods of 
Construction.

We will continue to build homes for:

l Outright Sale, to enable us to reinvest surplus made 
from these sales for social purposes; 

l The Private Rented Sector which provides homes 
for economically active clients unable or unwilling to 
access outright home ownership. These will produce 
positive rental streams and enable us to reinvest for social 
purposes;

l Shared Ownership, providing homes for a range of 
household affordability;

l Affordable Rent, providing homes for working people 
by agreement with Local Authorities; 

l General needs housing, in continuation of our social 
purpose.

We recognise client groups are changing and we will be 
ready to adapt to this. 

We will continue to deliver our development programme 
in our core geographical areas in London and the 
South East due to high demand and our own market 
experience. 

Imperative to our commercial programme will be 
securing land. We will continue to replicate a private 
developers approach to land acquisition, with S106 
opportunities (to acquire social housing from a private 
developer) used to secure handovers only when land 
cannot be acquired independently.

Building on our already good experience with joint 
ventures with the private sector, we will continue to use 
this value for money supply chain of sub-contractors 
and experience in managing them through construction 
management.

We will also build upon the success of our launch of the 
Local Authority Partnership initiative that has already 
enriched conversations with these very important 
partners and we hope to see contracts being signed in 
2015/16 as a result of this.

Our investment strategy focuses on sustainable growth 
through a portfolio of mixed-tenure development 
including grant, estate transfer and regeneration 
initiatives, Private Rent Sector and community 
development. 

Improvements in the housing market have presented a 
positive outlook for the Group and surpluses made this 
year and in subsequent years will be reinvested into 
providing housing to meet the Group’s social purpose.  
During 2014/15 we sold 158 (2014: 99) outright sale 
homes and 258 (2014: 248) first tranche shared 
ownership homes generating surpluses of £17.9m and 
£9.3m respectively.  In 2015/16 we will continue to see 
growth in the number of outright sale homes we sell, 
forecasting around 182 sales completions. 

Our shared ownership programme remains healthy 
and we are forecasting around 286 sales completions 
in 2015/16. In terms of surplus, the combined sales 
programme will realise around £28.6m. In addition, 
staircasing (sale of further tranches of shared ownership 
homes) remains popular with our residents and next 
year we forecast around 220 sales at £4.8m of surplus. 
Our team is committed to keeping as many of these 
homes within the affordable home ownership sector 
as possible and last year over 80% were resold to new 
shared owners, recycling the grant and ensuring these 
opportunities were not lost on the open market. We 
will also continue letting our Intermediate Market Rent 
portfolio and forecast around 120 relets during 2015/16. 
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The Group is also looking to continue its stock 
rationalisation programme with last year seeing the 
sale of our student accommodation in Rochester. 
Proceeds from these sales will enable the Group to 
build new properties and the sale of these properties 
will create efficiencies and cost savings, leading to 
stronger value for money. Overall, we will continue to 
review opportunities to rationalise our stock, as we look 
to maintain a high density of homes in those boroughs 
in which we operate, to ensure we have a strategic 
relationship of influence and respect. 

The MORE campaign continues to go from strength 
to strength, with over 500 homes in the pipeline. This 
programme seeks to identify development opportunities 
within our existing site portfolio. It offers real potential to 
enhance some of our estates and we are working with 
residents in a collaborative manner to ensure success is 
shared locally.

The Group continues to build the award winning 
Packington development, based in Islington. With 
phases 1, 2 and 3 now complete, phase 4 is under 
construction and going well. The homes are a mix of 
houses and flats in a highly desirable location in Islington 
which has attracted the attention of the Prince’s Trust, 
which holds it in high regard as a regeneration project.

We finished the new year exchanging contracts on a 
multi-million pound land acquisition which will deliver 
a major new mixed-use development in East Croydon 
adjacent to the station. The £20m land deal marks 
Hyde as a major developer in an area that is extremely 
active, with Westfield signing up to deliver another of its 
shopping centres. This development will provide much 
needed private, rented and affordable homes as well 
as associated commercial and amenity space. It will 
also benefit from Hyde’s award winning place-making 
experience, already evidenced at sites in Bermondsey 
and Packington. We look forward to delivering this high 
quality and substantial development using world-class 
design and construction standards. Hyde will make 
a significant contribution to Croydon’s regeneration 
strategy. 

In 2015, Hyde will deliver its first Private Rented Sector 
(PRS) homes as part of our long standing regeneration 
scheme at Kender in New Cross. These 54 homes 
will be in the heart of an area that is attracting a lot of 
attention as a future Housing Zone. This helps kick off 
the PRS strategy which included an initial commitment 
of £50m with which to attract further investment from 
financial institutions as Hyde’s market rent schemes 
prove their investment value. Hyde plans to develop 
more market rent housing. Our projects in Harrow and 
East Croydon, with their immediate location next to 
stations, are obvious contenders.
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Achieving VFM

Value for money (VFM)

The Group Board is responsible for ensuring the Group 
establishes and maintains a comprehensive and strategic 
approach to achieving value for money in meeting its 
Corporate Objectives. This approach is designed to 
ensure a robust assessment of the performance of our 
assets and resources (including for example financial, 
social and environmental returns) and takes into account 
the interests of, and commitments to, our stakeholders. 
The VFM strategy is designed to assist the Group in 
managing its resources economically, efficiently and 
effectively, to provide quality services and homes, and 
planning for and delivering on-going improvements in 
value for money.

The key elements in delivering our VFM approach 
include;

1. Group Board approval of the Corporate Plan, which 
includes VFM objectives and annual review of the 
VFM strategy, supported by detailed budgets and 
team targets;

2. Decision making, supported by robust strategies 
and business planning, that seeks to optimise the 
use of resources to deliver our objectives, taking 
into account the priorities of our residents (through 
HRV – Hydewide Residents’ Voice), our obligations to 
maintain decent homes and to invest in building new 
homes;

3. Our Asset Management Strategy ensures we 
understand the returns on our existing housing and 
commercial assets, and provides the tools to assess 
how best to optimise future returns in both social 
and financial terms. This may include additional 
investment, redevelopment, change in tenure type or 
disposal;

4. Our performance monitoring framework, overseen 
by the Group Housing Services Board for housing 
service delivery, the Group Investment Committee 
for investment and development delivery and the 
Group Board for treasury management. This is 
supported by resident scrutiny of local performance 
through resident assurance committees and for 
service experience by HRE (Hydewide Residents’ 
Eye). In addition, we carry out a yearly self-
assessment against the HCA National Standards 
to ensure that we are compliant and note plans for 
continuous improvement;

5. A strategic approach to service enhancement, such 
as is set out in our ‘Hyde on Demand’ strategy, 
supported by a business case approach to change 
delivery and investment proposals, with clear cost-
benefit measures reflected in budgets and service 
KPIs. Our approach makes use of well-established 
tools such as best value reviews, benchmarking 
within the G15 peer group and comparison to service 
models outside of the sector;

6. Establishing centres of expertise to support Group 
activities such as Hyde Plus (supporting residents 
through welfare reform, digital inclusion and in 
sustaining their tenancies); our in-house legal team 
(facilitating early intervention and mediation on 
tenancy matters and supporting Housing Officers 
with tenancy enforcement) and our centralised 
procurement team (allowing us to take a strategic 
approach to procurement, helping to shape internal 
service delivery and benchmark to market).
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Measuring success in VFM 
The Group has a suite of performance KPIs which 
capture how well Hyde is delivering on its social purpose 
and ensuring it is a viable, thriving organisation that will 
deliver its Corporate Plan. In addition, as part of the 
G15 we compare our performance and trends on key 
indicators of VFM.

Financial viability and cost of 
services 
Hyde’s financial performance and position are strong. 
The organisation increased its underlying accounting 
surplus in 2014/15 and is well funded to continue to be 
able to invest in the homes of our current and future 
residents. Hyde manages its cash flow closely to 
ensure that it is always capable of meeting its financial 

  
Hyde
2015

  
Hyde
2014

Peer group 
average  

2014

Operating margin 30% 28% 31%

Operating margin on social housing lettings 44% 42% 33%

Return on assets - Net operating surplus / Housing 
properties at cost

3.2% 2.7% 2.2%

Return on assets - Surplus before interest and tax / 
Housing properties at cost

4.4% 3.3% 3.3%

Total maintenance costs charged to income and 
expenditure statement per social housing lettings units

£953 £976 £1,177

Total operating costs per social housing lettings unit £3,117 £3,115 £4,647

obligations. Hyde reported an underlying surplus of 
£81.9m in the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 
This is an increase of £40.3m compared with the 
£41.6m Hyde reported last year. The biggest reason 
for the higher surplus is the increase in property sales 
activity Hyde has undertaken in the last year, for the 
purpose of generating more cash and profit to reinvest 
in our core business of providing affordable homes. 
In each of the last five years, the amount Hyde has 
invested in improving existing and delivering new 
homes has significantly exceeded the amount of surplus 
the organisation has made. Hyde uses a variety of 
exercises to compare its VFM performance with peer 
organisations. These include participating in an annual 
Housemark benchmarking round and constructing 
in-house analysis based on the accounts of peer 
organisations and on the HCA’s global accounts.



The Movement, Greenwich. 

Operating margin
Hyde’s operating margin remains in line with its peers, 
increasing in 2014/15 to 30% from 28%. This is largely 
due to an increase in outright sales in the year, although 
the increase in net operating margin for social housing 
letting has also improved by 2% reflecting improved 
performance in this area. There are a number of VFM 
initiatives in train to improve Hyde’s operating margin 
further in future years. With VFM in mind, there is a 
three year target (running from 2014 to 2017) to reduce 
our cash costs by £13m. This will be achieved by, for 
example, focusing on the costs that we incur on our 
central functions (such as Finance, Human Resources, 
Information Technology, Communications etc), on our 
stock spend, on our interest and by divesting from areas 
of our operations that are deemed to be non-core and 
which result in relative inefficiency. 

Our three year corporate plan will continue to focus on 
these areas, to ensure these benefits are sustained.
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Maintenance costs
Hyde’s maintenance costs per unit in 2014/15 have 
decreased by £23. This is due to a reduction in 
responsive repairs, as we have made the transition this 
year of delivering maintenance with our new repairs 
contractors.

Cost of capital
Hyde’s weighted average cost of debt has fallen in the 
past year from 5.51% to 5.36%, bringing Hyde more 
in line with peers. This has been achieved through the 
active management of the organisation’s loan portfolio, 
for example, by replacing relatively expensive debt with 
cheaper debt and actively managing the fixed to floating 
rate mix to take advantage of the current low interest 
rate environment. This has resulted in a lower interest 
cost, freeing up capacity to invest more in the homes of 
Hyde’s existing and future residents.

Further details on how we are delivering against 
our VFM plan and plans for the future can be found 
summarised in our annual report, in our annual value for 
money plan and also on our website  
(www.hyde-housing.co.uk).
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Risk and governance
Annually, the Group Audit Committee reviews the arrangements for risk identification and management. Strategic 
risks, those which may impact the delivery of the Corporate Plan, are monitored by the Group Board. Operational 
risks, those which may impact the provision of day to day services, are monitored by the Group Housing Services 
Board and the Group Investment Committee. These risks are refreshed annually along with the Corporate and Annual 
plans. The Group’s appetite for risk is defined as ‘open’ (using HM Treasury definitions) in that we are willing to 
consider all potential delivery options and choose the one that is most likely to result in successful delivery, while also 
providing an acceptable level of reward. While our risk appetite is described as ‘open’, for the delivery of services 

KEY RISK MITIGATION/ACTION

Continuous improvements 
to operational efficiency are 
not delivered leading to over 
dependency on asset sales
Service quality fails to keep pace with 
sector developments or residents’ 
changing requirements, the cost of 
provision becomes unaffordable, 
or there is insufficient staff and 
management capacity, buy in or 
expertise to deliver business change. 

l We have a robust approach to programme and project management that 
includes pilot and phased delivery of service changes, lessons learnt and 
tracking of benefit realisation;

l Hyde has in place a number of communication channels with which we 
engage and communicate with our staff to ensure that we gain staff buy-
in and momentum as we deliver service improvements; 

l Our Corporate Plan cascades targets to teams and includes value for 
money targets;

l We actively involve our residents through the inspection of our services, 
procurement panel and resident assurance committees to monitor our 
service performance;

l We use benchmarking and self assessments against regulatory 
standards to ensure operational efficiency and overall value for money. 

The Group’s brand with 
stakeholders is damaged
Relationships with residents and 
customers, the regulator, funders, 
local authorities and partners 
becomes strained due to poor 
performance and governance, 
long term viability concerns, thus 
impacting reputation and ability to 
secure funding.

l Hyde has in place a robust governance framework including a funded 
Corporate Plan which contains SMART milestones; 

l The Group Board regularly monitors our progress against the Corporate 
Plan and through our embedded risk management processes reviews 
our risks and emerging issues;

l Our Resident Engagement Strategy ensures we actively engage with our 
residents;

l Our Communications, Social Media and Stakeholder Management 
Strategies ensure that we actively communicate and engage with all our 
key stakeholders.

Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review
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KEY RISK MITIGATION/ACTION

Operational environment impacts 
makes the corporate plan 
unachievable 
Changes in availability of loan funding, 
government policy, future reduction 
in capital grants and welfare reform 
including changes to housing benefit rules 
have been identified as key risks to the 
Group. Such changes could impact on 
the Group’s ability to deliver its planned 
development programme and also affect 
core activities, for example if rental arrears 
increase as a result of reductions in 
housing benefit.

l We have in place a three year Corporate Plan which is supported 
by a number of plans and strategies including a five year Finance 
Plan, an Annual Finance Plan, an Annual Business Plan and an Asset 
Management Strategy;

l Our Group Board undertakes a strategic review of our financial plan 
including future funding options, sensitivity testing and contingency 
plans to ensure that the Group has adequate resource to deliver 
committed activities and development;

l We monitor the impact of welfare reform, have established a welfare 
reform working group and have invested in prevention methods 
through Hyde Plus;

l Hyde takes part in Central Government briefings, lobbying and working 
parties to inform the debate and influence decisions; 

l We continue to enhance our financial stress testing and our asset and 
liabilities register in line with regulatory requirements. 

Failure to provide products and 
services that meet market demand 
Successful delivery of the development 
programme depends on continued 
support from the HCA, GLA and Local 
Authorities, as well as the ability and 
willingness of development contractors 
to continue to build our schemes in a 
challenging economic environment. 
Success also depends on maintaining a 
track record and credibility to be a landlord 
of choice.

l Hyde wishes to be a ‘Landlord of Choice’ and continues to offer 
services on top of providing affordable housing; for example Hyde 
Plus, which is a key differentiator for our services. Hyde Plus continues 
to improve the quality of life and promotes life chances for our 
residents with a particular focus on those experiencing disadvantages;

l We continue to maintain the top financial rating from our Regulator, the 
HCA, and an A1 Credit Rating with Moody’s; 

l Hyde has a Business Development Strategy. All major development 
schemes are considered, evaluated and approved in advance by our 
Group Investment Committee;

l We work closely with the HCA and local authorities to implement 
and deliver new funding arrangements and to develop suitable tenure 
models.

Fluctuations in housing market 
impacts on open market sales, 
shared ownership programme and 
adversely impacts affordable housing 
programme delivery 
Macroeconomic factors, such as a change 
in interest rates or a downturn in the 
overall health of the economy, could result 
in a fall in house prices. These external 
issues could impact on the Group’s 
ability to generate its projected income 
and support the delivery of its affordable 
housing programme.

l Where appropriate, Hyde works with external partners through joint 
ventures to share risks in the development of schemes;

l Hyde continuously reviews market conditions and values, and the 
Group has a balanced geographical development programme;

l Hyde has mitigation strategies in place in the event of a market 
downturn.

l We have reduced our development financing risks by hedging or fixing 
our loans to safeguard against increases in interest rates;

l Hyde has stress tested its Financial Plan to determine the Group’s 
ability to deal with fluctuations in the housing market and the potential 
impact of fluctuations described in the Bank of England guidance for 
stress testing the UK banking system.

governing our statutory Health and Safety requirements, compliance with legislation and our regulatory framework, 
the approach adopted by management is ‘minimalist’ in that preference is for ultra-safe business delivery options.

The Statement of Group Corporate Governance and the Internal Controls Assurance are set out on pages 36 to 39. To 
ensure risk management is part of everyday activities the EMT review emerging issues monthly and report impact, 
mitigation and a wider PESTLE analysis to each business meeting of the Committee and GB. The key risks from the 
Group Strategic Risk Map are as follows:
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 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015  
Group Income and Expenditure (£m) £m £m £m £m £m
Total turnover 243.0 229.6 259.9 281.7 325.8 
Operating surplus  61.1 67.3 74.8 79.0 96.7
Net financing costs (interest payable and receivable) (51.4) (58.7) (55.8) (58.2) (52.6)
Underlying surplus for the year before taxation  15.1 13.8 25.7 41.6 81.9
FRS 17 (pension) adjustments 3.4 – – – –
FRS 26 (derivative instrument) adjustments (5.4) (56.4) (27.7) 27.3 (112.4)
Surplus/(loss) for the year before taxation 13.1 (42.6) (2.0) 68.9 (30.5)
     
Group Balance Sheet     
Housing properties net of depreciation 2,492.4 2,654.2 2,756.1 2,825.4 2,867.2
SHG and other capital grants (1,216.2) (1,266.0) (1,307.5) (1,329.2) (1,322.6)
Housing properties net of depreciation and grants 1,276.2 1,388.2 1,448.6 1,496.2 1,544.6
Other fixed assets 18.6 19.6 17.5 16.1 15.8
Fixed assets net of depreciation and grants 1,294.8 1,407.8 1,466.1 1,512.3 1,560.4
Other assets less current liabilities 182.1 72.6 136.0 224.8 276.7
Total assets less current liabilities 1,476.9 1,480.4 1,602.1 1,737.1 1,837.1
     
Loans and creditors due over one year 1,153.2 1,133.0 1,228.4 1,324.1 1,328.2
Other long term liabilities 60.8 127.7 165.9 129.5 272.9
Reserves 262.9 219.7 207.8 283.5 236.0
 1,476.9 1,480.4 1,602.1 1,737.1 1,837.1

Consolitated cash flow     
Net cash flow from operating activities 68.7 78.2 101.1 108.4 101.7
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance  (59.7) (72.8) (70.9) (75.1) (66.7)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure (69.7) (87.7) (110.8) (25.3) (27.7)
Financing 106.4 (18.7) 99.7 97.4 (7.7)
Increase / (decrease) in cash 45.7 (101.0) 19.1 105.4 (0.4)

Interest cover (parent entity only) – target > 0.80 0.86 0.88 1.00 0.98 1.20
Gearing (parent entity only) – target < 80% 65.5% 67.8% 68.2% 67.0% 65.8% 
Surplus before asset sales £’000 – target > £0 (£5,697) £8,742 £19,334 £21,231 £45,384
Net operating margin – target > 30%  25.1% 29.3% 28.8% 28.0% 29.7% 
Interest cover (Group) – target > 1.1 1.25 1.15 1.35 1.36 1.84
Gearing (Group) 73.3% 69.5% 73.1% 74.5% 73.2%
Return on assets (Group)  4.6% 3.7% 3.4% 4.1% 4.4%
Margin before asset sales 26.8% 29.5% 29.2% 25.4% 29.1%

Figure 1.3 Financial highlights
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We are committed to 
creating employment 
opportunities for 
residents, with 
training through 
our supply chain 
and via Hyde’s 
apprenticeship 
scheme.



The Group’s underlying surplus before taxation in the 
year was £81.9m (2014: £41.6m). This surplus is before 
reflecting the impact of market value movements on 
financial instruments used by the Group to hedge 
its interest costs. The impact of the market value 
movements in 2014/15 was a negative net movement 
of £112.4m (2014: positive net movement of £27.3m). 
More detail is provided on page 31. The result of the 
Group, including these items, was therefore a £30.6m 
loss (2014: £68.9m surplus) on ordinary activities before 
taxation. 

The underlying surplus of £81.9m, up £40.3m on last 
year, reflects a very strong performance from the 
Group’s core housing management operations and, 
in particular, our property trading sale activity. We are 
also seeing the benefits of our sustained investment in 
business transformation made over the course of the 
last three years for the benefit of both the business 
and our residents, as well as our active management of 
interest costs.   

Our surplus is a key provider of funding for new homes. 
Given the changes to sector funding (in particular the 
reduction in grant funding) we use our surplus to support 
our development programme. Over the past five years 
we have invested more than 2.6 times our surplus in the 
acquisition and construction of housing, as the following 
table shows:

Total average underlying surplus 
over the past five years

£35.5m

Total average cash spent on 
acquisition and construction of 
housing over the past five years 
(net of grant)

£93.1m

Cash spent on housing as a 
multiple of surplus

2.6 times

Turnover increased this year from £281.7m to £325.8m. 
Turnover from lettings increased by £5.3m to £207.0m, 
reflecting higher volumes of homes from new 
developments and stock acquisitions and inflation linked 
rental uplifts. Turnover from outright sales and first 
tranche shared ownership homes increased by £28.2m 
to £86.6m due to a higher number of completions and 
rising market values in 2014/15. 

Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review
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Hyde hosted a 
stakeholders’ 
conference at the 
Houses of Parliament in 
September 2014.
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Figure 1.4 Turnover Analysis
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Total operating expenditure increased year on year by £26.4m to £229.1m.  The main increase is due to increased 
outright and shared ownership first tranche sales activity in the year, which contributed an additional £27.9m of 
operating expenditure.  

Net interest payable in the year decreased by £5.6m, due to our investment in The Movement development in 
Greenwich generating a financing return of £5.2m. 

Our overall Group loss of £30.6m (after taking into account the fair value financial instruments loss of £112.4m) has 
resulted in our accumulated reserves decreasing to £236.0m.  We will continue to use these reserves to support 
reinvestment into our business, with the aim of providing good quality services and delivering more new homes. 

Operating surplus continues to improve year on year, increasing by £17.7m in 2014/15 to £96.7m. The operating 
surplus margin has increased in the year by 1.7% to 29.7%.

Figure 1.5 Operating Surplus
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Figure 1.6 Use of Reserves

  2015 2015 2014 2014 
  £’m % £’m %
Property – cost less depreciation and impairment  2,867.2  2,825.4 

Financed By:   
Loans (net of cash)  (1,162.8)         41% (1,157.0)        41%    
Grant  (1,322.6) 46% (1,329.2) 47%
Reserves  (236.0) 8% (283.5) 10%
Other  (145.8) 5% (55.7) 2%
  Nil 100% Nil 100%

Capital structure and treasury policy
The Group is financed by a combination of committed bank facilities (long dated term, and shorter dated revolving 
credit facilities), sterling bonds issued in the capital markets, private placement funding, Social Housing Grant funding 
from the UK Government and retained reserves. The Group’s Corporate Finance & Treasury department maintains 
sufficient cash and readily available committed credit facilities to fund the Group’s working capital requirements and 
investment programmes in the short to medium term.

The Group’s treasury strategy and policy is reviewed and approved annually by the Group Board to ensure it 
underpins the financial budget, operational targets and longer term strategic and financial plans of the Group. The 
Group reduces volatility in cash flows and interest payable through the use of an actively managed interest rate risk 
hedging programme. The Group’s financial and treasury strategy is reviewed annually by both Moody’s and the HCA 
as part of their financial assessment of the Group. The Group is rated A1 stable by Moody’s and has a top financial 
viability rating of V1 from the HCA.

As the above table shows, the Hyde Group has a total investment of £2,867.2m in property of which 49% has been 
financed from reserves and loans.
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Hyde’s multi-million pound 
regeneration project in Harrow 
includes homes, retail units, a library 
and public open space.



Hyde Housing Association Limited   |   Report & Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 201530

Hedging and risk policy
The Group considers the management of its exposure to interest rate risk to be a critical element in achieving 
its business objectives. The Group is able to manage its exposure to this risk through its loan agreements and 
the embedded hedging instruments contained therein (all closely related to the host contracts) and by arranging 
standalone hedging with approved counterparties governed by ISDA (International Swaps and Derivative Association) 
agreements. The Group has a policy of holding a portfolio of hedges, incorporating a mix of characteristics and 
maturities, that provides it with substantial protection against the effects of adverse movements in interest rates and, 
to a lesser extent, inflation movements.

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy sets minimum and maximum thresholds for its fixed to floating 
debt ratio within the Board approved treasury policy. The current approved range for fixed rate debt is 70%-95% 
(including interest rate swaps) and the mix is shown below:

  2015 2015 2014 2014 
  £’m % £’m %

Fixed Rate  996.5 76% 1,090.2 84%
Variable Rate  313.0 24% 213.9 16%
Total Drawn Down  1,309.5  1,304.1

Figure 1.7 Loan Facilities

Figure 1.8 Group Borrowing

Loans and credit facilities
At 31 March 2015 the Group had committed facilities of £1,556.9m (2014: £1,541.4m), of which £1,309.5m (2014: 
£1,304.1) net of loan costs had been drawn. Committed facility headroom, being un-utilised facilities totalling 
£234.0m (2014: £225.0m), is considered sufficient to fund over two years worth of commitments. 75% (2014: 
76%) of the credit facilities were provided by the UK bank and private placement debt markets and 25% (2014: 24%) 
by the bond capital markets. The Group monitors the maturity and duration of its borrowings to ensure an orderly 
repayment profile, thereby reducing refinancing and liquidity risk. The maturity profile is shown below:

  2015   2014 
  £’m   £’m
0-1 years   8.4   8.1
1-2 years  71.2   8.4
2-3 years  76.4   76.9
3-5 years  172.0   233.7
More than 5 years  1,228.9   1,214.3
Total  1,556.9   1,541.4

The weighted average maturity duration of facilities across the Group is 17.4 years (2014: 17.4 years). Treasury ensures 
refinancing risk is kept low by ensuring that no more than 20% of the loan portfolio matures in any one year.

Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review
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Financial instruments: FRS 26 and 29
In July 2010 the Group issued a listed bond. As a result of this listing the Group was obliged to adopt financial 
reporting standards – FRS 26 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and FRS 29 “Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures”. 

The main impact of this accounting change is that the Group’s derivative transactions (primarily interest rate swaps) 
must be accounted for at market value. All derivative contracts are entered into in line with the group hedging policy 
which allows the Group to manage interest rate and other risks. In entering into derivative contracts the Group seeks 
best value for money and hence has some derivatives that are “stand alone” rather than being embedded into the 
underlying instrument.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the 
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Due to limitations 
on the application of hedge accounting, volatility has been introduced into the Income and Expenditure Statement as 
market value movements are not fully offset by movements in the underlying hedged item within each period. There 
is no cash flow impact to the Group’s results as a result of adopting FRS 26.

Given that the reasons for entering into the derivatives remain commercially sound (i.e. they are intended to be held 
to maturity in order to reduce volatility in the Group’s cash flows), the Group has opted to report the underlying result 
of the Group before reflecting the impact of these accounting standards. 

This approach reflects the manner in which the Group manages its risks. It is supported by funders of the Group 
who, where applicable, have amended lending covenants to exclude the impact of these accounting standards in 
recognition of the fact that the Group’s ongoing cash flows are not impacted and hence there is no change in the 
ability of the Group to continue to service its debt. The inclusion of this accounting volatility decreases the reported 
2015 surplus by £112.4m (2014: £27.3m surplus). The large movement in value this year reflects the relatively 
substantial decrease in applicable long term interest rates during 2014/15. 

The Group monitors and manages on a daily basis concentrations of risk for individual loan and swap counterparties, 
hedge type or hedge instruments. Speculative financial transactions are not permitted and the Group uses financial 
instruments for risk management purposes only.

The Group monitors on a daily basis its exposure and sensitivity to potential mark-to-market (MTM) cash margin calls 
on its stand alone interest rate swap arrangements. Sufficient cash balances, property collateral and readily available 
committed credit facility reserves are maintained at all times to cover reasonably foreseeable liabilities, even during 
times of unfavourable interest rates. Any Group MTM exposures created by the fair value calculations at month-end 
or year-end on any stand alone interest rate swaps are always covered by property and/or cash collateral to reduce 
any outstanding exposure to zero.

Other treasury risks
The Group does not have any natural currency or major security or commodity market risks due to the nature of its 
business. Liquidity surpluses are deposited with a Group Board approved panel of counterparties having approved 
credit ratings and are monitored on a daily basis. 

The Group’s weighted average cost of capital for the year was 5.36% (2014: 5.51%), reflecting the lower interest rate 
environment and the additional variable rate interest rate swaps entered into in 2014/15.
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Loan facility security
All committed facilities were secured by fixed charges over properties at the year-end. In addition, the Group held 
7,899 (2014: 6,684) unencumbered properties available for use as security for new loans. These properties were 
estimated to provide potential security for a further £624.0m (2014:£512.7m) of new loans.

Covenants and covenant headroom
Financial covenant compliance is managed centrally by the Corporate Finance and Treasury department and reported 
on a monthly basis. Interest cover, gearing, tangible net worth and asset cover covenant ratios are the main financial 
tests required by lenders. There were no breaches in the year and a full covenant compliance report is maintained as 
part of management reporting procedures.

Cash flow
The main factor influencing the amount and timing of borrowings drawn is the pace of the development programme. 
Whilst the amount and timing of payments may be monitored and predicted, the timing of sales receipts, land 
acquisitions and interim payments to contractors may influence materially the cash flow profile. Short, medium and 
long term cash flow forecasts are used to manage the Group’s liquidity positions and headroom availability. 

Pensions
The current status of the Group’s pension funds is disclosed in note 37.

Employees and equal opportunities
The Group continues to reward performance through its performance-related pay scheme. Negotiations regarding 
general levels of pay commence with the Joint Negotiating Council from January each year. Individual salaries at 
appointment, upon promotion, as well as one-off increases outside the annual pay review, are benchmarked against 
relevant market data and reflect an individual’s performance and contribution. 

We operate a strong performance management process. All our staff have an annual appraisal and all managers 
attend assessment centres as part of their recruitment to ensure that they have the right skills and are provided with 
the right level of support for them to be successful in their leadership role.

Information about our objectives, progress and activities are shared through regular individual team and departmental 
meetings. Regular staff newsletters are produced and consultations with staff and Union representatives take place 
on appropriate matters affecting staff. We also run regular staff surveys and action plans to improve employee 
engagement.

Our learning and development programmes across the Group continue to equip our people with the skills and 
knowledge they need. To ensure that we’re delivering the best quality training we have entered into partnership with 
external expert providers including Thales and Ashridge Business School. 

The Group recognises its legal and social obligations with regard to the employment of disabled persons and those 
with protected characteristics. Applications for employment by disabled persons are given full consideration, taking 
account of aptitude and ability. The Group recognises its responsibility to support employees who become disabled 
during the course of their employment. 

Our people are instrumental to our success and we value the diversity that each employee brings to the business. 
The Group maintains its IiP Gold status and its Positive about Disabled People accreditation and in 2015 achieved 
Silver status in the Business in the Community “Opportunity Now” and “Race for Opportunity” benchmark. The 
Group is also a Stonewall Diversity Champion.

Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review



 2015  2014
 Men Women Men Women
Executive Management Team 50% 50%  67% 33%
Senior Leadership Group 51% 49%  56% 44%
All other employees 44% 56%  44% 56%

Figure 1.9 Breakdown of the gender of the Executive Management Team, Senior Leadership 
Group and employees at the end of the financial year

We developed our Flexible Benefits Scheme during the year allowing employees to choose their benefits package. 
Over 90% of employees are members of one of Hyde’s pension schemes. The Group recruited a second cohort of 
apprentices during 2014/15. 
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Meet the buyer event 
January 2015.
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Group Board members and organisation executive directors
The present Group Board members and the members of the Executive Management Team are set out on page 5. The 
Group Board members are drawn from a wide background, bringing together professional, commercial and housing/
social experience. In recognition of the challenges facing the Board, and the time and effort they put into performing 
their duties, the Association remunerates Group Board members. No member of the Executive Management Team 
holds any interest in the Association’s shares and they act as executives within the authority delegated by the Group 
Board.

Board meetings Commitee meetings

No. meetings No. Attended No. Meetings No. Attended

Mark Sebba 4 3 1 –
Julie Hollyman                                  5 5 3 3
Nicholas Badman 10 9 13 13
Alan Collett 10 9 7 7
Paul Cook 8 8 3 3
Kishwer Falkner 10 9 6 6
Paula Hay-Plumb 10 9 5 5
Alastair Imrie 10 8 15 14
Duncan Ingram 10 10 9 9
Prodaman Sarwal 10 9 7 7
Piers White 10 10 14 13
Elaine Bailey 7 7 – –
Steve White 3 3 – –
Simon Peacock 10 10 – –

Figure 1.10 Group Board Attendance

Group code of governance
The Group Board has adopted the NHF Code of Governance “Excellence in Governance” as the governance code 
for the Hyde Group. In May 2015, the Group conducted a Group wide self assessment of compliance with the 
Code. The results of the assessment were reported to the Group Board in May 2015. The Group concluded that 
they complied with the Code during the year, with one exception. The Group maintains a maximum board size of 
15 places (including co-options),  three higher than the NHF Code of Governance suggests, in order to provide 
membership flexibility in any potential future growth opportunities. However, during the year, Board membership did 
not exceed 12 at any time.

Report of the Board and Operating and Financial Review
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Statements of compliance
The Board confirms that this Operating and Financial 
Review has been prepared in accordance with the 
principles set out in paragraphs 33 and 34 of the 2010 
SORP for registered social landlords..

Health and Safety
The Group Board is aware of its responsibilities on all 
matters relating to Health and Safety (H&S). The Group 
has prepared a detailed H&S policy and provides staff 
training and education on H&S matters. The Group has 
a permanent H&S Director whose role is to maintain and 
enhance Hyde’s H&S strategy, policy and culture and to 
ensure Hyde’s continued compliance with regulation and 
industry practice.

Housing property assets
Details of changes to the Group’s housing property fixed 
assets are shown in note 15 of the financial statements.

Reserves
Details of changes to reserves are shown in note 30 of 
the financial statements.

Dividends
No dividends are payable.

Political and charitable contributions
During the year the Group made no political 
contributions. The Group donated £451,000 to charitable 
projects (2014: £375,000).

Post balance sheet events
The Group Board considers there have been no events 
since the year end that have had a significant effect on 
its financial position. 

Going concern
The Group Board has a reasonable expectation that the 
Association and the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. These financial statements are prepared on a 
going concern basis.

Internal controls assurance
The Group Board’s responsibility for establishing and 
maintaining the whole system of internal control and 
for reviewing its effectiveness is set out in the Internal 
Controls Assurance statement on page 39.

Executive members’ liability 
insurance
The Group is covered by the National Housing 
Federation’s Directors’ and Officers’ Liability policy. The 
Group also has additional independent top-up cover to 
indemnify directors and officers against legal liability 
arising from claims made against them as a result of any 
wrongful act in their capacity as a director or officer of 
the Group.

Independent Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
(PwC) as external auditors to the Hyde Group will be 
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(AGM).

Mark Sebba
Chair
10 July 2015
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Statement of Group Corporate Governance

The Group Board
The Group Board is the ultimate governing body of the 
Hyde Group (the Group). It comprises 10 non-executive 
directors and two executive directors and meets 
regularly throughout the year. Four of these meetings 
are formal business meetings, the remainder are set 
aside for the Board to consider wider strategic issues. 
Members receive remuneration to compensate them 
for the time and effort they put in and to attract the skills 
that the Group requires. Members are drawn from a 
range of professional and business backgrounds so that 
there is an optimum mix of skills and expertise to fulfil 
the function of the Group Board.

Delegation
The Group Board delegates some of its responsibilities 
to functional committees. Each of these committees 
has clear terms of reference and delegated authority. 
They report back to the Group Board after each meeting, 
where their recommendations are fully considered and 
approved where appropriate. Each of these committees 
is chaired by a non-executive member of the Group 
Board. The functional committees have a Group-wide 
remit.

Functional Committees
There are four main functional committees within the 
Group: the Group Audit Committee, the Group Housing 
Services Board, the Group Investment Committee and 
the Group Remuneration and Appointments Committee.

The Group Audit Committee
The role of this committee is to oversee the work of 
both the internal and external audit function and to 
oversee the risk management framework and internal 
control framework for the Group. The Committee 
reviews the audited financial statements for all parts of 
the Group and recommends them to the relevant Boards 
for approval. It is also responsible for recommending 
to the Group and subsidiary Boards the appointment 
of internal and external auditors and investigating any 
activity it thinks fit, or as may be referred to it. It submits 
an annual report on internal controls to the Group Board. 
Through the reports it receives, the Audit Committee 
gains comfort that the Group has appropriate systems 
of internal control and is able to comply with the Homes 
and Communities Agency’s expectations in this area.

The Group Housing Services Board
The Group Housing Services Board’s role is to scrutinise 
executive performance in respect of the Group’s core 
business operations. It provides the Group Board with 
the reassurance that operational performance is subject 
to effective non executive oversight. 

In particular, the Board scrutinises delivery of the Group’s 
service promise and local offer, scrutinises progress 
against ongoing operational work programmes, oversees 
the development of appropriate benchmarking criteria for 
internal and external validation of service performance, 
oversees the identification and mitigation of statutory 
and regulatory risk (including health and safety) and 
oversees the people issues as they affect operational 
delivery.

The Group Housing Services Board is also the “hub” 
for the Group’s “common board” model of governance 
for the registered provider subsidiaries in the Group. Its 
members are also the members of the Martlet Homes 
Limited, the Hyde Southbank Homes Limited and the 
Hillside Housing Trust Limited (being Group subsidiaries) 
Boards. This enables the Group Housing Services Board 
to oversee the operations of these subsidiaries and to 
meet simultaneously as the relevant Boards where a 
particular board approval is required.

The Group Investment Committee
The Group Investment Committee oversees and 
approves the Group’s investment in major development 
projects. In particular it scrutinises and approves the 
Group’s participation in substantial urban regeneration 
and renewal projects.

The Group Remuneration and 
Appointments Committee  
(the Remuneration Committee) 
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for 
setting the remuneration of board members and of 
the Executive Management Team. In addition the 
Remuneration Committee oversees the process for 
board member appraisal and reviews the process for 
board member appointment.

The governance of the Group and its subsidiaries is summarised in the following paragraphs. 
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Eyot Heights, Bermondsey Spa.
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Providing affordable rural homes 
ensures local people can afford
to live in the places where they 
were brought up, work or have 
family connections.
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Internal Controls Assurance

The Group Board (Board) is ultimately responsible for 
ensuring the Group establishes and maintains a system 
of internal control appropriate to the various business 
environments in which it operates. Such a system is 
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk 
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss.

The key elements in exercising control include:

1. Group Board approved terms of reference and 
delegated authorities for the Group housing services 
board and the audit, investment and remuneration 
committees;

2. Clearly defined management responsibilities for the 
identification, evaluation and control of significant 
risks;

3. Robust strategies and business planning process, 
with detailed financial budgets and forecasts;

4. Formal recruitment, retention, training and 
development policies for all staff;

5. Established authorisation and appraisal procedures 
for significant new initiatives and commitments;

6. A sophisticated approach to treasury management 
which is subject to external review each year;

7. Regular reporting to the appropriate committee on 
key business objectives, targets and outcomes;

8. Group Board approved whistle-blowing and anti-theft 
and corruption policies;

9. Group Board approved fraud policies, covering 
prevention, detection and reporting together with 
recoverability of assets;

10. Regular monitoring of loan covenants and 
requirements for new loan facilities;

11. Annual review of Homes and Communities Agency 
‘Economic and Consumer Standards’.

The Board confirms that it has a strategy and policy 
on fraud and the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy was 
reviewed during the year. 

The system of internal controls is ongoing, and has been 
in place for the year to 31 March 2015 and up to the date 
of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The Board recognises its responsibility for the system of 
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The 
Group produces an annual review of internal controls. 
This provides assurances in external audit, internal 
control, internal audit, whistle blowing, risk management 
and performance monitoring.

The Board reviews annually the effectiveness of the 
system of internal controls in existence in the Group. 
This includes a review of the fraud register. The Board 
confirms that all necessary actions are taken to remedy 
any significant failings or weaknesses which may have 
been identified during the review.

The Board cannot delegate ultimate responsibility for the 
system of internal control but has delegated authority 
to the Group Audit Committee to regularly review the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control. The 
Board receives Group Audit Committee quarterly reports 
and all meeting minutes are made available. The Group 
Audit Committee has received the Chief Executive’s 
‘Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of 
Internal Control’ for the Group, and the annual report of 
the internal auditor, and has reported its findings to the 
Board. 

The Board confirms no weaknesses were found in the 
internal controls for the year ended 31 March 2015 
which might otherwise have resulted in material losses, 
contingencies or uncertainties which require disclosure 
in the financial statements.
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Statement of Group Board’s Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual 
Report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.

The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 
2014 and registered social housing legislation require the 
Board to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the registered provider of social housing (RPSH) and 
of the surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing 
these financial statements, the board is required to: 

l select suitable accounting policies and then apply them 
consistently; 

l make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; 

l state whether applicable accounting standards have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the financial statements; and 

l prepare the financial statements on the going concern 
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the RPSH 
will continue in business. 

 
Mark Sebba
Chair
10 July 2015

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the transactions and which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the RPSH and to enable it to ensure that the 
financial statements comply with the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for 
Social Housing in England from April 2012. It has general 
responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard 
the assets of the RPSH and to prevent and detect fraud 
and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance 
and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation 
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Cecilia Johnson, who completed 
her apprenticeship with Hyde in 
February 2014.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Hyde 
Housing Association Limited

Report on the financial statements
Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below:

l give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s 
and of the registered provider’s affairs as at 31 March 
2015 and of the group’s and the registered provider’s 
income and expenditure and cash flows for the year 
then ended; and

l have been properly prepared in accordance with 
the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies 
Act 2014, and the Industrial and Provident Societies 
(Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction 
for Social Housing in England 2012.

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say 
in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited
The group financial statements and registered provider 
financial statements (the “financial statements”), which 
are prepared by Hyde Housing Association Limited, 
comprise:

l the group and registered provider balance sheets as at 
31 March 2015;

l the group and registered provider income and 
expenditure accounts and statements of total 
recognised surpluses and deficits for the year then 
ended;

l the group cash flow statement for the year then 
ended; and

l the notes to the financial statements, which include a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In applying the financial reporting framework, the 
directors have made a number of subjective judgements, 
for example in respect of significant accounting 
estimates. In making such estimates, they have made 
assumptions and considered future events.

What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & 
Ireland)”). An audit involves obtaining evidence about 

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: 

l whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
group and the registered provider’s circumstances 
and have been consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; 

l the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by the directors; and 

l the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial 
information in the Consolidated Report and Financial 
Statements (the “Annual Report”) to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and 
to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the 
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing 
the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report.

Other matters on which we are required to report 
by exception.

Adequacy of accounting records, system of control 
and information and explanations received
Under the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in 
our opinion:

l we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit; or

l a satisfactory system of control over transactions has 
not been maintained; or

l proper accounting records have not been kept by the 
registered provider; or

l the registered provider financial statements are not in 
agreement with the books of account.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this 
responsibility.



Responsibilities for the financial 
statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the Board
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Group 
Board’s Responsibilities set out on page 40, the Board 
is responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on 
the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require 
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared 
for and only for the registered provider’s members as 
a body in accordance with Section 87(2) and Section 
98(7) of the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 and the Housing and Regeneration 
Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving 
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for 
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this 
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save 
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Hyde helps graduates gain 
valuable work experience with 
its construction partners as part 
of their career development.
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Pauline Campbell
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account
For the Year Ended 31 March 2015
 

 Note Pre    Pre  
  FRS 26 FRS 26 Total FRS 26 FRS 26 Total
  2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
       
Group Turnover  317,080 – 317,080 281,717 – 281,717 
Joint Venture Turnover 18 8,713 – 8,713 – – –
Total Turnover 2 325,793 – 325,793 281,717  – 281,717
Group Operating Costs  (223,901) – (223,901) (202,678) – (202,678) 
Joint Venture Operating Costs 18 (5,205) – (5,205) – – –
Total Operating Costs 2 (229,106) – (229,106) (202,678) – (202,678) 
Group Operating Surplus  93,179 – 93,179 79,039 – 79,039 
Joint Venture Operating Surplus 18 3,508 – 3,508 – – –
Total Operating Surplus 2,5  96,687 – 96,687 79,039  – 79,039
Surplus on sale of housing properties 6 35,514 – 35,514 20,360         –  20,360
Surplus on sale of other assets 7 420 – 420 –         –       – 
Surplus on sale of investment 8 895 – 895 – – – 
Interest receivable and other income 9 15,545 5,142 20,687 11,068 36,576 47,644
Interest payable and similar charges 10 (68,130) (117,565) (185,695) (69,263) (9,317) (78,580)
Other finance income  1,016 – 1,016 387 – 387
Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities  
before taxation  81,947 (112,423) (30,476) 41,591 27,259 68,850
Tax on surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities 11 (165) – (165) – – –
Surplus/(deficit) for the year  81,782 (112,423) (30,641) 41,591 27,259 68,850
Revenue reserve brought forward 30   304,839   226,879
Reserve movements 30   (13,559)   9,110
Revenue reserve carried forward 30   260,639   304,839

The turnover, surpluses and deficits for the current year and previous year relate to continuing activities, except 
where stated otherwise. 

There is no material difference between the surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities before taxation and the surplus/
(deficit) for the year stated above and their historical costs equivalents. 

FRS26: As explained on page 31, the Group reports the results before and after reflecting the impact of fair value 
changes in derivative financial instruments.

Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised  
Surpluses and Deficits
For the Year Ended 31 March 2015
 Note 2015 2014
  £’000 £’000

Surplus/(deficit) for the year after taxation  (30,641) 68,850
Unrealised gain/(loss) on assets available for sale 30 577 (508)
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 30 (4,126) 3,977
Actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes 37 (10,217) 4,531
Total recognised surplus/(deficit) for the year  (44,407) 76,850
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Association Income and Expenditure Account

Association Statement of Total 
Recognised Surpluses and Deficits 

For the Year Ended 31 March 2015

For the Year Ended 31 March 2015

 

 Note Pre    Pre  
  FRS 26 FRS 26 Total FRS 26 FRS 26 Total
  2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
       
Turnover 2 198,893 – 198,893 187,630 – 187,630
Operating costs 2 (143,609) – (143,609) (140,145) – (140,145)
Operating surplus 2,5 55,284 – 55,284 47,485 – 47,485
Surplus on sale of housing properties 6 39,351 – 39,351 13,472 – 13,472
Loss on sale of other assets 7 (11) – (11) – – –
Interest receivable and other income 9 5,627 3,516 9,143 5,146 25,817 30,963
Interest payable and similar charges 10 (52,148) (95,486) (147,634) (53,563) (8,643) (62,206)
Other finance income  653 – 653 348 – 348
Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities  
before taxation  48,756 (91,970) (43,214) 12,888 17,174 30,062
Tax on ordinary activities 11 – – – – – –
Gift aid 12 26,783 – 26,783 14,070 - 14,070
Surplus/(deficit) for the year  75,539 (91,970) (16,431) 26,958 17,174 44,132
Revenue reserve brought forward 30   117,028   67,726
Reserve movements 30   (7,390)   5,170
Revenue reserve carried forward 30   93,207 26,958  117,028

 Note 2015 2014
  £’000 £’000

Surplus/(deficit) for the year after taxation  (16,431) 44,132
Unrealised gain/(losses) on assets available for sale 30 817 (653)
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 30 (4,622)  3,473
Actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes 37 (7,390) 4,937
Total recognised (deficit)/gain for the year  (27,626) 51,889

The turnover, surpluses and deficits for the current year and prior year relate to continuing activities, except where 
stated otherwise. 

There is no material difference between the surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities before taxation and the surplus/
(deficit) for the year stated above and their historical costs equivalents. 

FRS26: As explained on page 31, the Association reports the results before and after reflecting the impact of fair 
value changes in derivative financial instruments.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2015

 Note 2015 2014
  £’000 £’000
Fixed assets   
Housing properties at cost 15 3,027,369 2,970,387
Social housing and other capital grants 15 (1,322,611) (1,329,156)
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 15 (160,173) (144,991)
Net book value of housing properties  1,544,585 1,496,240
Other fixed assets 16 15,861 16,092
Derivative financial instruments due after more than one year 17 30,430 6,756
Investments

Share of joint venture gross assets 18 305 –
Share of joint venture gross liabilities 18 (305) –
Other investments 18 9,555 14,724

Total fixed assets  1,600,431 1,533,812
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 24,785 17,407
  1,625,216 1,551,219
Current assets   
Stocks 20 105,569 82,238
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 21 26,217 25,737
Cash at bank and in hand 22 146,688 147,058
  278,474 255,033
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 23 (66,542) (69,133)
Net current assets  211,932 185,900
Total assets less current liabilities  1,837,148 1,737,119

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year   
Loans and other creditors 24 1,328,176 1,324,115
Derivative financial instruments 25 234,405 108,844
Recycled capital grant fund 26 19,177 11,525
Disposal proceeds fund 27 1,856 718
  1,583,614 1,445,202

Provisions for liabilities and charges 28 1,318 1,395
Pension liability 37 16,220 7,007
   
Capital and reserves   
Called up share capital 29 – –
Revaluation reserves 30 3,386 2,443
Restricted reserves 30 3,244 3,380
Cash flow hedge reserve 30 (31,273) (27,147)
Revenue reserve 30 260,639 304,839
Total capital and reserves  235,996 283,515
  1,837,148 1,737,119

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 10 July 2015. The notes on pages 50 to 97 form part of 
the financial statements.

 Mark Sebba Elaine Bailey John Edwards
 Chair Group Chief Executive Company Secretary
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Association Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2015

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 10 July 2015. The notes on pages 50 to 97 form part of 
the financial statements.

 Mark Sebba Elaine Bailey John Edwards
 Chair Group Chief Executive Company Secretary

 Note 2015 2014
  £’000 £’000
Fixed assets   
Housing properties at cost 15 2,535,986 2,497,747
Social housing and other capital grants 15 (1,249,249) (1,259,970)
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 15 (131,592) (121,089)
Net book value of housing properties  1,155,145 1,116,688
Other fixed assets 16 10,913 10,922 
Derivative financial instruments due after more than one year 17 30,430 6,756
Investments 18 1,447 2,840
Total fixed assets  1,197,935 1,137,206
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 95,834 80,718
  1,293,769 1,217,924
Current assets   
Stocks 20 41,946 23,250
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 21 49,607 32,889
Cash at bank and in hand 22 79,166 93,260
  170,719 149,399
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 23 (56,334) (57,996)
Net current assets  114,384 91,403
Total assets less current liabilities  1,408,154 1,309,327

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year   
Loans and other creditors 24 1,109,286 1,103,203
Derivative financial instruments 25 197,859 92,410
Recycled capital grant fund 26 18,352 11,321
Disposal proceeds fund 27 1,660 647
  1,327,157 1,207,581

Provision for liabilities and charges 28 1,319 1,395
Pension liability 37 10,188 3,235
   
Capital and reserves   
Called up share capital 29 – –
Revaluation reserves 30 2,011 1,194
Restricted reserves 30 2,629 2,629
Cash flow hedge reserve 30 (28,357) (23,735)
Revenue reserve 30 93,207 117,028
Total capital and reserves  69,490 97,116
  1,408,154 1,309,327
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 31 March 2015

 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000

Net cash flow from operating activities 101,677 108,355

Returns on investments and servicing of finance   
Interest received 7,430 1,588
Interest paid (74,013) (76,671)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (66,583) (75,083)
  
Taxation  
Tax paid (80) –
  
Capital expenditure and financial investments   
Acquisition and construction of housing properties (103,518) (97,532)
Social housing and other grants received 15,657 34,042
Purchase of other fixed assets (4,279) (1,194)
Proceeds of sale from other fixed assets 944 –
Sale of housing properties 57,922 41,102
Investments 5,573 (1,684)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure (27,701) (25,266)
  
Net cash inflow before use of liquid resources and financing 7,313 8,006
  
Financing   
Loans received – 115,916
Loans paid (7,683) (18,516)
 (7,683) 97,400
Increase/(decrease) in cash (370) 105,406
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Notes to The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 31 March 2015

  2015 2014
  £’000 £’000

A. Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities  

Operating surplus  96,687 79,039
Net depreciation and amortisation  26,373 20,915
Impairment          529 5,530
(Increase)/decrease in stock  (21,434) 940
(Increase)/decrease in debtors  (356) (6,524)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors  (45) 9,014
(Decrease)/increase in provisions  (77) (559)
           101,677  108,355
   
   
  2015 2014 
  £’000 £’000

B. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt   
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year  (370) 105,406
Net non cash change in loans  (15,175) 3,632
Net cash (decrease)/increase in loans  9,698 (97,400)
  (5,847) 11,638
Net debt at 1 April  (1,156,992) (1,168,630)
Net debt at 31 March  (1,162,839) (1,156,992)
   
   
 1 April  31 March
 2014 Cash Flow  2015 
 £’000 £’000 £’000

C. Reconciliation of net debt to related items on the balance sheet  
Cash balances 147,058 (370) 146,688
Debt falling due within one year (8,128) (292) (8,420)
Debt falling due after one year (1,295,922) (5,185) (1,301,107)
Net debt (1,156,992) (5,847) (1,162,839)



Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Group Accounting Policies

Introduction and accounting basis
The financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis and in accordance with applicable UK 
GAAP financial reporting standards, the Accounting 
Direction for Social Housing in England from April 2012 
(“the Direction”), and the Statement of Recommended 
Practice: accounting by Registered Social Housing 
Providers 2010 published in 2010 (“the 2010 SORP”) 
and comply with the Co-operative and Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014.  The financial statements 
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
as modified by the revaluation of investments and 
derivative financial instruments.  The following 
accounting policies have been applied consistently in 
dealing with items which are considered to be material in 
relation to the financial statements of Hyde Housing 
Association Limited (The Group) and all constituent 
subsidiaries. 

Hyde Housing Association Limited has taken advantage 
of the exemption contained in FRS 8 – “Related Party 
Disclosures”, and has therefore not disclosed 
transactions or balances with entities which form part of 
the Group.

Basis of consolidation
The Group is required by the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 to prepare group 
financial statements.  The group financial statements 
comprise those of the Association together with its 
subsidiaries (note 35) and are consolidated using 
acquisition accounting.  This is in accordance with the 
requirements of FRS 2 – “Accounting for Subsidiary 
Undertakings”.

Cash flow statement
The Association has taken advantage of the exemptions 
under FRS 1 – “Cash flow Statement” and has not 
prepared a cash flow statement.

Turnover
Turnover comprises rents and service charges, income 
from property sales, management fees, other services 
included at the invoiced value (excluding VAT) of goods 
and services supplied in the year and revenue based 
grants receivable from local authorities and the Homes 
and Communities Agency. It also includes sale proceeds 
from first tranche shared ownership sales. All income is 
recognised on a receivable basis and sales of property 
are recognised at completion. Intra-group income and 
expenditure is included in turnover and operating costs 

on an arms length basis in the financial statements of the 
Association but is eliminated in producing the Group 
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-contract costs
Costs incurred in bidding for and securing contracts for 
the supply of products and services are recognised as 
expenses incurred up to the date of announcement of 
preferred bidder. Where the Group/Association is 
successful in attaining preferred bidder status, those 
costs that are incurred after attaining preferred bidder 
status and are directly attributable to the contract are 
recognised as an asset and amortised over the life of the 
contract.

Housing properties
The cost of housing properties comprises their purchase 
price, together with directly attributable costs in bringing 
them into working condition for their intended use. The 
directly attributable costs are the labour costs of own 
employees arising directly from the construction or 
acquisition of the property and the incremental costs that 
would have been avoided only if individual properties had 
not been constructed or acquired. Interest is capitalised 
on a fair proportion of the borrowings of the Group/
Association as a whole, calculated on the costs incurred 
during the period of development, less Social Housing 
Grant (SHG) received. Improvements are capitalised only 
when they result in an increase in the net rental income, 
such as a direct increase in rental income, a reduction in 
future maintenance costs, or in a significant extension of 
the useful economic life of the property in the business. 
All other improvement expenditure is charged to the 
Income and Expenditure account when incurred.

The Association operates a component accounting policy 
in relation to the capitalisation and depreciation of its 
completed housing property stock.  Housing properties 
where the Association has the responsibility for 
maintaining and replacing a component are split between 
their land and structure costs and seven major 
components which each have their own periodic 
replacement. These are detailed below. Where the 
Association does not have responsibility for maintaining 
and replacing components, properties are split between 
land, build and grant only.

50 Hyde Housing Association Limited  |  Report & Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Stock Swaps
Where opportunities for the swapping of housing stock 
with other associations arise, the transactions are shown 
on a nil loss, nil gain basis. The substance of the 
transaction is a not for profit disposal of the existing 
properties with the acquired properties received as part 
of the consideration.

Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of freehold housing properties is charged 
so as to write down their cost (net of Social Housing 
Grant) to their residual value on a straight line basis over 
their expected useful economic lives for the Group/
Association on the following basis.

Component Useful Economic Life (years)

Land Not depreciated

Structure 100

Roof 60

Heating (excl boiler) 30

Boiler 15

Windows and Doors 30

Electrical Wiring 40

Bathroom 30

Kitchen 20

Supported housing
Social housing capital grants are claimed by the Group/
Association as developer and owner of the property and 
included in the balance sheet of the Group/Association.

The treatment of other income and expenditure in respect 
of supported housing projects depends on the nature of 
the partnership arrangements between the Group/
Association and its managing agents and on whether the 
Group/Association carries the financial risk. In addition to 
directly managed hostels, the Group/Association owns 
properties in respect of some hostels which are run by 
outside agencies. The Group/Association receives grants 
and Special Needs Management Allowance on behalf of 
some of the agencies. With regard to supporting people 
and hostel grant and management income, where the 
Group/Association carries the financial risk, all the income 
and expenditure is included in the Income and 
Expenditure account. Where the agencies carry the 
financial risk, the Income and Expenditure account 
includes only that income and expenditure which relates 
solely to the Group/Association.

Impairment of housing properties
Impairment reviews are carried out in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standard 11 – “Impairment of Fixed 
Assets and Goodwill” (FRS 11). The Group/Association’s 
Tangible Fixed Assets held for letting are depreciated 
over 100 years and are therefore subject to an annual 
impairment review. An impairment review is carried out 
on completed schemes, work in progress and land held 
for future development. Other assets are reviewed for 
impairment if there is an indication that impairment may 
have occurred.

Where there is evidence of impairment, fixed assets are 
written down to their recoverable amount. Any such 
write down is charged to operating profit.

Calculations for each scheme are performed by 
comparing either present value of expected future cash 
flows or current market value against the carrying values. 
If the carrying value is greater than the present value of 
future cash flows or the market value, an impairment 
provision is made.

Stock Transfers
Where opportunities for the regeneration of local 
authority housing stock arise after transfer requests from 
residents and tenants, the Group/Association may seek 
to maximise the resources available for regeneration 
schemes by entering into a VAT shelter arrangement. In 
these circumstances, the underlying substance of the 
transactions is reflected in the financial statements on a 
gross basis. The net costs of developing properties for  
the local authorities is shown as long term debtors.

Social Housing Grant (SHG) and other capital 
grants
Where developments are financed wholly or partly by 
SHG, the cost of those developments is reduced by the 
amount of the grant receivable. Where SHG is received 
on elements of repair expenditure that are charged in the 
Income and Expenditure account, it is treated as a 
revenue grant and credited to turnover. At the balance 
sheet date if the SHG receivable on any development 
project is greater than gross cost, the difference is 
included in creditors falling due within one year and 
shown as SHG in advance. SHG may be repayable in 
certain circumstances, such as where the development 
of a property is not completed. Certain developments 
are funded by other capital grants. These grants are dealt 
with in a similar manner to SHG.
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Other grants
Other grants are receivable from local authorities and 
other organisations. Grants in respect of revenue 
expenditure are credited to the income and expenditure 
account in the same period as the expenditure to which 
they relate. 

Provisions
The Group/Association provides for lease dilapidations 
over the life of all properties where an obligation is likely.

Operating leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a 
straight line basis over the lease term to the income and 
expenditure account.

Shared ownership
First tranche sales are included within turnover and the 
related proportion of the cost of the asset recognised as 
operating costs. The costs relating to expected future 
first tranche sales in respect of shared ownership 
properties are transferred from housing properties under 
construction in fixed assets to housing properties current 
assets. The remaining element of shared ownership 
schemes are included in housing properties, net of SHG. 
Lessees have the right to acquire further tranches and 
any surplus or deficit on such subsequent tranches is 
recognised in the income and expenditure account as a 
part disposal of a fixed asset.

Deferred expenditure
Capital expenditure on other leasehold properties is 
treated as deferred expenditure. The proportion which is 
not financed by SHG is amortised over the anticipated 
term of the tenancy. Certain schemes receive additional 
grants to fund projected rent shortfalls against 
expenditure. Such grant is treated as deferred income 
which is held in creditors and released over the life of the 
lease.

Depreciation of other fixed assets
Other fixed assets are depreciated on the following 
basis:

Fixed assets are depreciated each month from the 
purchase date.

Investment assets
Investments are classified as available for sale and are 
valued at market value. The difference between market 
value and historic cost is taken to the Statement of Total 
Recognised Surpluses and Deficits where market value 
differs to historic cost and carried forward in the 
Investment Revaluation Reserve.

Investments held by subsidiaries
Investments owned by Hyde Charitable Trust are stated 
at market value.

Stock
Properties developed for resale and first tranche shared 
ownership properties are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value and included in current assets.

Treasury Management / Derivatives
To manage interest rate risk the Group/Association 
manages its proportion of fixed to variable rate 
borrowings within approved limits and where appropriate 
utilises interest rate swap agreements. Amounts payable 
or receivable in respect of these agreements are 
recognised as adjustments to interest expense over the 
period of the agreement.

Discounted bonds
Discounted bonds are shown at their redemption value 
plus or minus the issue premium or discount, which is 
written off through the Income and Expenditure account 
on an annuity basis over the life of the bond.

Freehold premises 100 years on a straight line 
basis

Leasehold premises over the life of the lease on a 
straight line basis

Furniture and equipment:

Solar panel 
components

25 years on a straight line 
basis

Solar panel power 
inverters

12 years on a straight line 
basis

Furniture 6 years on a straight line basis

Computer hardware 3 years on a straight line basis

Motor vehicles 4 years on a straight line basis

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Pension schemes
The Group/Association operates/participates in five 
retirement schemes; the Hyde Housing Association 
Limited Defined Benefits Scheme, the Hyde Housing 
Association Limited Defined Contribution Scheme, the 
Pension Trust Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), 
the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund Scheme 
and the West Sussex Pension Scheme. 

The Hyde Housing Association Limited Defined Benefits 
Scheme, the Pension Trust Social Housing Pension 
Scheme (SHPS), the London Borough of Lambeth 
Pension Fund Scheme and the West Sussex Pension 
Scheme are Defined Benefit Schemes and are not open 
to new entrants. Accounting for Hyde Group/Association 
employees’ pensions is in accordance with generally 
accepted practice, as defined by Financial Reporting 
Standard 17 – “Retirement Benefits” (FRS 17).

Hyde Housing Association Limited Defined Benefit 
Scheme, the London Borough of Lambeth Pension 
Fund Scheme and the West Sussex Pension 
Scheme
• In accordance with the requirements of FRS 17 the 

costs are accounted for when committed, regardless 
of when the benefits are deliverable. The financial 
statements reflect, at fair value, the assets and 
liabilities arising from the Group’s/Association’s 
retirement obligations.

• The operating costs of providing retirement benefits 
to employees are recognised in the accounting 
period(s) in which the benefits are earned by the 
employees, and the related finance costs and any 
other charges in value of the assets and liabilities are 
recognised in the accounting periods in which they 
arise.

• The financial statements disclose the cost of providing 
retirement benefits and related gains, losses, assets 
and liabilities. The attributable assets of the schemes 
are measured, at their fair value, at the balance sheet 
date, and are shown net of attributable scheme 
liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from any new 
valuation, and from updating the latest actuarial valuation 
to reflect conditions at the balance sheet date, are 
recognised in the Statement of Total Recognised 
Surpluses and Deficits for the year. 

Losses arising on a settlement or curtailment not 
allowed for in the actuarial assumptions are measured at 
the date on which the Group/Association becomes 
demonstrably committed to the transaction and are 
recognised in the operating costs at that date. Gains 
arising on a settlement or curtailment not allowed for in 
the actuarial assumptions are measured at the date on 
which all parties whose consent is required are 
irrevocably committed to the transaction and are 
recognised in the operating costs at that date.

Pension Trust Social Housing Pensions Scheme 
(SHPS)
The Group/Association is unable to identify its share of 
the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a 
consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as 
required by FRS 17, accounts for the scheme as if it 
were a defined contribution scheme. As a result the 
amount charged to the income and expenditure account 
represents the contributions payable to the scheme in 
respect of the accounting period.

Hyde Housing Association Limited Defined 
Contribution Scheme
Employees have the option to join the Hyde defined 
contribution scheme, to which the Association makes a 
contribution of up to 10%. The contributions are 
recognised as they fall due.

For all pension schemes current service costs are 
included within the Income and Expenditure Account, 
within operating costs.

Taxation
The Group/Association has charitable status and 
therefore is not subject to Corporation Tax on the surplus 
arising from charitable activities. Provision is made for 
the tax liabilities which may arise when property is 
developed for commercial outright sale. Tax is 
chargeable on the activities of Brent Co-Efficient Limited 
and Hyde Vale Limited and a provision is made for any 
tax payable.

Deferred tax is recognised without discounting in 
respect of all timing differences between the treatment 
of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes 
which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet 
date, except as otherwise required by Financial 
Reporting Standard 19 – “Deferred Tax” (FRS 19).
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VAT
The Group’s VAT affairs are dealt with under a group 
registration in the name of Hyde Housing Association 
Limited. The Group recovers only a small proportion of 
input VAT. Expenditure is therefore shown inclusive of 
VAT, to the extent that it is not recoverable, with non-
attributable input tax recovered being credited against 
management expenses.

Service Charges
The Group operates both fixed and variable service 
charges on a scheme-by-scheme basis in full 
consultation with residents. The service charges on all 
schemes are set on the basis of budgets. Where variable 
service charges are used the budget will include an 
allowance for the surplus or deficit from prior years, with 
a surplus being returned to residents in the form of a 
reduced charge for the year and a deficit being recovered 
via a higher service charge or by alternative methods if 
the contract allows. Until these surpluses are returned 
they are held on the balance sheet as a creditor and a 
deficit is held as a debtor.

Restricted reserves
Reserves include funding given to further develop 
properties, funding given for use in charitable activities 
and reserves set aside for insurance.

Financial instruments
The Group/Association has adopted Financial Reporting 
Standard 26 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement’ and Financial Reporting Standard 29 
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. These became 
effective for the year ended 31st March 2011 following 
the issue by Hyde Housing Association Limited of a 
listed bond. Further details are given in note 38. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on 
the Group’s/Association’s balance sheet when the 
Group/Association becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets
The Group/Association measures financial assets on 
initial recognition at fair value, and determines the 
classification of such assets at initial recognition and on 
any subsequent reclassification event. Financial assets 
are classified into one of four primary categories:

Financial assets at fair value through the income and 
expenditure account: these are all derivative assets 
other than those that are designated as hedging 
instruments and assets acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the near term. They are initially 
measured at fair value, excluding transaction costs. At 
each balance sheet date, they are re-measured at fair 
value. Any change in value is recognised in the income 
and expenditure account within interest payable or 
receivable unless hedge accounting is effective, in 
which case movements are treated as described in the 
hedge accounting section below. If the hedge 
relationship is deemed to not be effective or if there is 
partial ineffectiveness, changes in fair value 
ineffectiveness would be recognised in the income and 
expenditure account in accordance with accounting 
standards. 

Loans and receivables: this includes non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market and have not 
been designated as either fair value through the income 
and expenditure account or available for sale. Such 
assets are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. They are measured on this 
basis whether they are intended to be held-to-maturity 
or not. Gains and losses are recognised in the income 
and expenditure account when loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired as well as through 
amortisation. 

Held to maturity investments; non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturity are classified here when the Group/Association 
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. 
These are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the income and expenditure account 
when held to maturity investments are derecognised or 
impaired as well as through amortisation.

Available for sale financial assets: available for sale 
financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that 
are designated as such, or that are not classified in any 
of the other categories. These are held at fair value with 
gains or losses being recognised as a separate 
component of equity until the asset is derecognised or is 
determined to be impaired, at which time the previously 
reported cumulative gain or loss is included in the 
income and expenditure account. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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If there is no active market for a financial asset and it is 
not appropriate to determine fair value using valuation 
techniques, financial assets are carried at amortised 
cost.

Financial liabilities
The Group/Association determines the classification of 
financial liabilities at initial recognition and on any 
subsequent reclassification event. Financial liabilities are 
classified into one of two primary categories:

Financial liabilities at fair value through income and 
expenditure account: these are derivative liabilities other 
than those that are designated within cash flow hedge 
relationships. These are initially measured at fair value, 
not including transaction costs. At each balance sheet 
date, they are re-measured at fair value. Any change in 
value is recognised in the income and expenditure 
account within interest payable or receivable. Where 
hedge relationships are effective, movements are 
treated as described in the hedge accounting section 
below. If the hedge relationship is deemed to not be 
effective, or if there is partial ineffectiveness, changes in 
fair value/ineffectiveness would be recognised in the 
income and expenditure account in accordance with 
accounting standards. Effectiveness is achieved when 
the matching criteria between the hedged item and 
hedging instrument within FRS 26 is met.

Other financial liabilities: are classified as other liabilities 
and are held at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate. This includes loans, short term borrowings, 
overdrafts and trade payables. Borrowings will include 
accrued un-amortised issue costs.

Impairment of financial assets
All financial assets are reviewed for indicators of 
impairment at each reporting date. Such indicators 
include default in contractual payments, significant 
financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor, probability of 
bankruptcy, or prolonged or significant decline in quoted 
market price. An impairment loss is recognised in the 
income statement when there is objective evidence that 
an asset is impaired.

The impairment loss on loans and receivables, which are 
measured at amortised cost, is the difference between 
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

When an impairment loss is identified on an available-
for-sale financial asset, the cumulative losses previously 
recognised directly in equity are recorded in the income 
statement. The loss recognised in the income statement 
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of 
principal repayment and amortisation) and the fair value 
at the time of impairment, less any impairment loss 
previously recognised in the income statement.

The impairment loss on investments in companies that 
are not quoted in an active market and are measured at 
cost is the difference between the carrying amount of 
the investment and the present value of its estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the current market 
interest rate for similar financial assets.

Impairment losses in respect of loans are recognised 
under financial expenses in the income statement.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are 
recognised under selling and general expenses in the 
income statement.
Impairment losses on investments in companies that are 
not quoted in an active market and are measured at cost, 
and on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale 
financial assets, cannot be reversed through the income 
statement.

Embedded derivatives
Embedded derivatives are identified at inception of a 
new loan by reference to the host contract. Derivatives 
embedded in host contracts are held at amortised cost 
provided their economic characteristics and risks are 
closely related to those of the host contract and the host 
contract itself is not carried at fair value through the 
income and expenditure account. Derivatives embedded 
in host contracts are treated as separate derivatives 
when their economic characteristics are not closely 
related to those of the host contract and the host 
contract is not carried at fair value through the income 
and expenditure account. These embedded derivatives 
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value 
recognised in the income and expenditure account.
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Hedge accounting
In instances where the Group/Association has 
established an effective hedge relationship between a 
derivative and an underlying asset/liability the derivative 
is accounted for consistent with that underlying asset/
liability. Any ineffectiveness present within the hedge 
relationship is recognised in the income and expenditure 
account in interest payable or receivable.
Derivatives are initially accounted and measured at fair 
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and 
subsequently measured at fair value. The gain or loss on 
re-measurement is taken to the income statement 
except where the derivative is designated as a hedge 
and the hedge meets the criteria for hedge accounting. 
The group designates certain derivatives as: 

• A hedge of the fair value of an asset or liability (‘fair 
value hedge’). 

• A hedge of the income/cost of a highly probable 
forecasted transaction or commitment (‘cash flow 
hedge’). 

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group/
Association is required to document in advance the 
relationship between the item being hedged and the 
hedging instrument. The Group/Association is also 
required to document and demonstrate an assessment 
of the relationship between the hedged item and the 
hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge is 
expected to be highly effective on an on-going basis. 
This effectiveness testing is re-performed at each period 
end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective. 
Gains or losses on fair value hedges that are regarded as 
highly effective are recorded in the income statement 
with the gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to 
the hedged risk. Gains or losses on cash flow hedges 
that are regarded as highly effective are recognised in 
equity. Where the forecast transaction results in a 
financial asset, financial liability, income or expenditure, 
amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the 
income and expenditure account in the period where the 
hedged item affects the income and expenditure 
account. Where the forecasted transaction or 
commitment result in a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, then any gains or losses previously 
deferred in equity are included in the cost of the related 
asset or liability. 

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, any 
cumulative gains or loss existing in reserves at that time 
remain in reserve and are recognised in the income and 
expenditure account when the forecast transaction is 
ultimately recognised in the income and expenditure 
account. When a hedge no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting and the risk is not still in existence, 
any cumulative gain or loss existing in reserves at that 
time will be recognised in the income and expenditure 
account immediately. When a hedge no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting and the risk is not still in 
existence, any cumulative gain or loss existing in 
reserves at that time will be recognised in the income 
and expenditure account. Whilst the criteria remain 
unmet, any future change in fair value gains or losses will 
be recognised in the income and expenditure account 
within interest receivable or payable.
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2. Consolidated particulars of Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus

  Operating Operating  Operating Operating
 Turnover costs surplus Turnover  costs surplus
 2015 2015 2015  2014 2014 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Social housing lettings (note 3): 206,999 (117,151) 89,848 201,706 (116,959) 84,747 
   
Other social housing activities:    
Current asset property sales 34,486 (25,190) 9,296 21,517 (12,713) 8,804
Other 21,058  (19,125) 1,933 19,202 (19,743) (541)
Charges for support services 1,491 (27,759) (26,268) 1,508 (27,575) (26,067)

Non-social housing activities:
Outright property sales 52,150 (34,279) 17,871 36,925 (23,365) 13,560 
Other 896 (397) 499 859 (2,323) (1,464)
Joint Ventures (note 18): 8,713 (5,205) 3,508 – – –
 325,793 (229,106) 96,687 281,717 (202,678) 79,039
    

2. Association particulars of Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus

  Operating Operating  Operating Operating
 Turnover costs surplus Turnover  costs surplus
 2015 2015 2015  2014 2014 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Social housing lettings (note 3): 152,731 (87,473) 65,258 147,949 (89,318) 58,631 
   
Other social housing activities:    
Current asset property sales 25,974 (17,651) 8,323 20,168 (11,880) 8,288
Other 17,134 (15,494) 1,640 16,799 (14,324) 2,475
Charges for support services 1,491 (21,887) (20,396) 1,508 (21,886) (20,378)

Non-social housing activities:
Outright property sales 789 (675) 114 561 (664) (103)
Other 774 (428) 346 645 (2,073) (1,428)
 198,893 (143,609) 55,284 187,630 (140,145) 47,485
    
Other social housing activities above primarily includes turnover and operating costs relating to PFI management 
contracts,  agency services and Hyde Plus social investment.

Other social housing activities above primarily includes turnover and operating costs relating to PFI management 
contracts,  agency services and Hyde Plus social investment.
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3. Consolidated particulars of Income and Expenditure  
from Social Housing Lettings

    Leasing and Health and
 General Supported  Shared management education Intermediate  
 needs housing ownership services accommodation Market Rent 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
        
Rent receivable net of  
service charges 156,741 10,061 9,738 6,387 2,622 3,334 188,883 180,687
Service charges  
receivable 7,885 3,527 3,427 – 170 1 15,010 17,305
Net rental income 164,626 13,588 13,165 6,387 2,792 3,335 203,893 197,992
Management fee  
income 1,261 26 188 – 511 13 1,999 2,098
Revenue grants  – 34 – 1,073 – – 1,107 1,616
Turnover from social  
housing lettings 165,887 13,648 13,353 7,460 3,303 3,348 206,999 201,706
        
Service charge costs (11,499) (3,327) (3,762) (66) (110) (272) (19,036) (17,580)
Management (25,128) (3,155) (1,493) (1,137) (1,057) (494) (32,464) (28,495)
Routine maintenance (18,184) (1,961) (269) (613) (83) (253) (21,363) (21,864)
Planned maintenance  (10,941) (640) (149) (190) (32) (48) (12,000) (12,286) 
Bad debts (1,178) (119) (43) (250) (12) (17) (1,619) (1,992)
Major repairs  
expenditure (1,596) (481) (326) (44) – (16) (2,463) (2,492)
Property lease charges (47) (131) – (5,182) (881) – (6,241) (7,411)
Depreciation and  
impairment –  
housing properties (18,654) (1,693) (1,021) – (136) (461) (21,965) (24,839)
Operating costs on  
social housing  
lettings  (87,227) (11,507) (7,063) (7,482) (2,311) (1,561) (117,151) (116,959)
        
Operating surplus/ 
(deficit) on social  
housing lettings 78,660 2,141 6,290 (22) 992 1,787 89,848 84,747
        
Void losses (1,399) (184) (16) (482) (46) (76) (2,203) (2,672)
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3. Association particulars of Income and Expenditure 
from Social Housing Lettings

    Leasing and Health and
 General Supported  Shared management education Intermediate  
 needs housing ownership services accommodation Market Rent 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
        
Rent receivable net of  
service charges 109,982 8,120 9,208 6,387 2,622 2,962 139,281 133,317
Service charges  
receivable 5,176 2,941 3,265 – 170 1 11,553 12,272
Net rental income 115,158 11,061 12,473 6,387 2,792 2,963 150,834 145,589
Management fee  
income 53 24 187 – 511 13 788 751
Revenue grants  2 34 – 1,073 – – 1,109 1,609
Turnover from social  
housing lettings 115,213 11,119 12,660 7,460 3,303 2,976 152,731 147,949
        
Service charge costs (7,249) (2,801) (3,613) (66) (110) (252) (14,091) (12,599)
Management (16,580) (2,534) (1,365) (1,136) (1,047) (473) (23,135) (20,649)
Routine maintenance (12,524) (1,628) (249) (613) (83) (211) (15,308) (16,709)
Planned maintenance  (7,266) (418) (145) (190) (32) (39) (8,090) (7,893)
Bad debts (839) (104) (42) (250) (12) (14) (1,261) (1,577)
Major repairs expenditure (930) (414) (306) (44) - (15) (1,709) (1,925)
Property lease charges (47) (131) - (5,182) (881) – (6,241) (7,390)
Depreciation and  
impairment –  
housing properties (14,688) (1,454) (959) – (136) (401) (17,638) (20,576)
Operating costs on  
social housing  
lettings  (60,123) (9,484) (6,679) (7,481) (2,301) (1,405) (87,473) (89,318)
        
Operating surplus/ 
(deficit) on social  
housing lettings 55,090 1,635 5,981 (21) 1,002 1,571 65,258 58,631
        
Void losses (890) (87) (14) (482) (46) (66) (1,585) (2,225)
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Inside the penthouse of the Super B 
development, Brighton.
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4. Housing Units

  Affordable   Temporary Health and   Intermediate 
 General Rental Supported  Shared Social education Contract Lease market Other
 needs Tenure housing ownership Housing accomm. Mngmnt holders rent rented Total

GROUP          
Housing accommodation units:          
In ownership 26,265 1,203 2,325 3,394 981 822 – 4,880 381 363 40,614
In management 734 – – 45 – – 6,737 250 – – 7,766
Owned, managed 
by others 37 – 1,220 – 9 – – – – – 1,266
Total units as at  
31 March 2015 27,036 1,203 3,545 3,439 990 822 6,737 5,130 381      363 49,646
          
In ownership 26,733 547 2,620 3,420 1,120 821 – 4,500 382 363 40,506
In management 739 – – 47 – – 6,737 175 – – 7,698
Owned, managed 
by others 37 – 1,277 – 9 – – – – – 1,323
Total units as at  
31 March 2014 27,509 547 3,897 3,467 1,129 821 6,737 4,675 382      363 49,527

  Affordable   Temporary Health and   Intermediate 
 General Rental Supported  Shared Social education Contract Lease market Other
 needs Tenure housing ownership Housing accomm. Mngmnt holders rent rented Total

ASSOCIATION          
Housing accommodation units:          
In ownership 18,009 1,110 1,857 3,207 981 822 – 3,200 330 361 29,877
In management 734 – – 45 – – 6,391 250 – – 7,420
Owned, managed 
by others 37 – 1,220 – 9 – – – – – 1,266
Total units as at  
31 March 2015 18,780 1,110 3,077 3,252 990 822 6,391 3,450 330 361 38,563
          
In ownership 18,451 511 2,152 3,225 756 821 – 2,853 331 361 29,461
In management 739 – – 47 – – 6,391 175 – – 7,352
Owned, managed 
by others 37 – 1,277 – 9 – – – – –  1,323
Total units as at  
31 March 2014 19,227 511 3,429 3,272 765 821 6,391 3,028 331 361 38,136
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5. Operating Surplus

6. Surplus on Sale of Housing Properties

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Operating surplus (all relating to continuing activities) is stated after charging /(crediting):
Depreciation and impairment:    

Housing properties depreciation 23,524 22,932 18,203 16,020
Impairment of housing properties 529 5,530 529 5,530 
Other fixed assets depreciation 2,849 2,628 2,754 2,482
Amortisation of leasehold properties (1,007) (1,341) (1,007) (1,341)
Amortisation of long term debtor      455                  506 – –
Operating lease charges 4,134 4,812 3,481 3,930
Auditors’ remuneration (excluding VAT and including expenses):    
As auditors of the financial statements 127 126 80 78
Other services 97 77 97 77

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Right to buy and acquire    
Proceeds     5,648       4,668 2,068 837
Cost of sales  (3,125)   (2,799) (1,540) (728)
Total surplus      2,523 1,869         528 109
    
Staircasing    
Proceeds 21,682  17,276 20,401 16,303
Cost of sales  (13,485)     (11,669) (12,711) (10,949)
Total surplus 8,197 5,607 7,690 5,354
    
Other disposals    
Proceeds  52,461   19,346 60,644 32,579
Cost of sales (27,667) (6,462) (29,511) (24,570)
Total surplus  24,794  12,884 31,133 8,009
    
Total surplus on property sales 35,514 20,360 39,351 13,472

Notes to the Financial Statements

7. Surplus/(deficit) on Sale of Other Assets

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Other disposals    
Proceeds      905 – 400 –
Cost of sales (485) –  (411) –
Total surplus/(deficit) on other asset sales 420 – (11) –
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8. Surplus on Sale of Investments

9. Interest Receivable and Other Income

10. Interest Payable and Similar Charges

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Other disposals    
Proceeds         895 – – –
Cost of sales – –  – –
Total surplus on other asset sales 895 – – –
The proceeds relate to the disposal of investment in the Charities Official Investment Fund (COIF).

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
From cash deposits 597 662 400 562
From other sources 14,948 10,406 1,257 1,688
From Group undertakings – – 3,970 2,896
 15,545 11,068 5,627 5,146
On financial liabilities/assets at fair value through the  
income and expenditure account: 
Fair value gains in respect of derivative financial instruments 5,142 36,576 3,516 25,817
 20,687 47,644 9,143 30,963
Interest receivable from other sources includes finance debtor income, dividends, investment income and interest 
from a debt service reserve.

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
On bank loans and overdrafts 72,738 74,936 54,811 57,574
Other finance costs 1,549 1,255 1,286 919
 74,287 76,191 56,097 58,493
Less interest capitalised (6,157) (6,928) (3,949) (4,930)
 68,130 69,263 52,148 53,563
On financial liabilities/assets at fair value through the  
income and expenditure account:    
Fair value losses in respect of derivative financial instruments   117,565      9,317 95,486 8,643
  185,695  78,580    147,634       62,206
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11 Tax on Surplus/(deficit) on Ordinary Activities

12 Gift aid

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Deferred tax (165) (187) – –
Tax charge for the year – 80 – –
Adjustment in respect of prior period – 107 – –
 (165) – – –

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Reconciliation of current tax charge    
Result for the year before taxation (30,476) 68,850 (43,214) 30,062
Tax at 21% thereon: (2014: 23%) (6,400) 15,836 (9,075) 6,914
Effects of:    
Charitable income not chargeable to tax 6,400 (15,729) 9,075 (6,914)
Current tax – 80 – –
Unrecognised tax loss (165) (187) – –
Capitalised interest – – – –
Total current tax charge (165) – – –

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Gift aid receivable – – 26,783 14,070

Hyde Housing Association Limited and its subsidiaries (except for Hyde Vale Limited, Hyde New Build Limited and 
Brent Co-Efficient Limited), are exempt from Corporation Tax on the charitable activities they perform.  Hyde Vale 
Limited’s principal activity is the development of property for outright sale on a commercial basis in support of the 
mixed tenure activities of the Group and provisions for corporation tax liabilities have been made, to the extent that 
these liabilities are not mitigated by the distribution of profits back to Hyde Housing Association Limited to fund 
additional social housing homes. Hyde New Build Limited’s principal activity is the design and build of property on 
behalf of the Group and its subsidiaries and provisions for corporation tax liabilities have been made, to the extent 
that these liabilities are not mitigated by the distribution of profits back to Hyde Housing Association Limited to 
fund additional social housing homes. Brent Co-Efficient Limited’s principal activity is the delivery of a PFI project.

Deferred tax assets are recognised at a rate of 21% (2014: 23%) and relate to trading losses and accelerated 
capital allowances.
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13. Employee Information and Costs

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 No. No. No. No.

FTEs 1,258 1,200 973 906

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Staff costs:    
Wages and salaries 45,269 41,315 35,628 33,128
Social security costs 4,208 4,319 3,475 3,596
Pension costs (note 37) 4,312 4,221 3,247 3,595
 53,789 49,855 42,350 40,319

The table below provides detail of the number of employees paid a basic salary and redundancy in excess of £60,000 
during the year, excluding pension costs.

The average number of persons employed (including Executive Directors but excluding non executive Board 
members) expressed as Full Time Equivalent (FTEs), based on a 35 hour working week, during the year was:

 GROUP
 2015  2014
 FTE Nos. FTE Nos.
£60,000 - £69,999 36 35
£70,000 - £79,999 15 12
£80,000 - £89,999 9 7
£90,000 - £99,999 5 4
£100,000 - £109,999 6 2
£110,000 - £119,999 1 3
£120,000 - £129,999 1 2
£130,000 - £139,999 2 –
£140,000 - £149,999 2 1
£150,000 - £159,999 1 –
£160,000 - £169,999 – 1
£170,000 - £179,999 1 –
£180,000 - £189,999 1 –
£190,000 - £199,999 1 1
 81 68
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14. Directors’ Emoluments

 GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 
 £’000 £’000

Gross salary excluding pension and national insurance contributions for:  
Members of the Board  
Mark Sebba (appointed 1 November 2014) 11 –
Julie Hollyman (resigned 1 November 2014)          13 23
Nicholas Badman 20 17
Alan Collett  13 11
Paul Cook (appointed 5 June 2014) 11 –
Sharon Darcy (resigned 4 July 2013) – 3
Kishwer Falkner 12 10
Janet Green (resigned 31 December 2013) – 13
Paula Hay-Plumb  19 14
Claire Holloway (resigned 31 March 2013) – 5
Alastair Imrie  19 17
Duncan Ingram  19 17
Prodaman Sarwal 13 11
Piers White  13 11
 163 152
Members of the Board and the Executive Management Team  
Steve White (resigned 5 June 2014) 181 242
Elaine Bailey (appointed 5 June 2014) 189 –
Simon Peacock  198 201
 568 443
Members of the Executive Management Team  
Tracy Allison  147 146
Carol Carter  172 173
Neville Hounsome  138 122
David Gannicott (appointed 4 June 2013) 157 46
John Tibbitts (resigned 30 June 2013) – 40
Total 1,345 1,122
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 GROUP AND 
 ASSOCIATION
 2015 2014 
 £’000 £’000
Pension contributions  
Steve White (resigned 5 June 2014) 6 20
Elaine Bailey (appointed 5 June 2014) 18 –
Tracy Allison 12 12
Simon Peacock  17 16
Carol Carter 14 11
John Tibbitts (resigned 30 June 2013) – 3
Neville Hounsome 12 11
David Gannicott (appointed 4 June 2013) 14 4
Total 93 77

Compensation for loss of office payments in the year were £77k (2014: £53k). All of the compensation for loss of 
office in 2014/15 was contractual and paid to the previous Chief Executive.  

Following the transition from Steve White to Elaine Bailey as CEO during the year, the highest paid Director was the 
Group Finance Director of the Association, and he was employed jointly by the entities within the Hyde Group. The 
highest paid Director is a member of the Hyde Housing Association Limited Defined Contribution scheme and the 
terms and conditions of their membership were consistent with all other members of this scheme.

14. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
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15. Consolidated Tangible Fixed Assets – Housing Properties

Additions to housing properties during the year include capitalised interest of  £6,157,000 (2014: £6,928,000) (note 
10) and capitalised administration costs of £2,705,000 (2014: £2,267,000). The total amount of cumulative interest 
capitalised in housing properties is not separately identifiable. Total expenditure on works to existing properties 
during the year amounted to £27,611,000 (2014: £29,932,000) of which £24,703,000 (2014: £26,946,000) was 
capitalised. No assets were held under finance leases at 31 March 2015 and 2014. There are fixed charges on 
29,881 housing properties (note 24) (2014; 31,313). 

 Housing Housing Completed Shared
 properties properties shared ownership
 held for under  ownership under 
 letting construction properties construction Total
 £’000  £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000
     
Cost     
At 1 April 2014 2,428,691 279,406 238,820 23,470 2,970,387
Additions 24,104 66,020 - 23,751 113,875
Tenure conversions (589) – 589 – –
Intragroup transfers 981 (463) (518) – –
Disposals (43,117) - (13,776) – (56,893)
Completed 72,199 (72,199) 20,218 (20,218) –
At 31 March 2015 2,482,269 272,764 245,333 27,003 3,027,369
     
Social housing and other grants     
At 1 April 2014 (1,109,555) (105,451) (107,509) (6,641) (1,329,156)
Received – (16,050) – (2,979) (19,029)
Tenure conversions 294 – (294) – –
Intragroup transfers (340) (540) 340 540 –
Disposals 18,965 – 6,609 - 25,574
Completed (23,715) 23,715 (4,639) 4,639 –
At 31 March 2015 (1,114,351) (98,326) (105,493) (4,441) (1,322,611)
     
Accumulated depreciation and impairment     
At 1 April 2014 (136,328) (1,122) (6,775) (766) (144,991)
Impairment (410) (119) – – (529)
Tenure conversions 15 – (15) – –
Intergroup transfers (5) – 5 - –
Charged (22,527) – (997) – (23,524)
Disposal  8,254 119 498 – 8,871
Completed (845) 845 (55) 55 –
At 31 March 2015 (151,846) (277) (7,339) (711) (160,173)
     
Net book value
     
At 31 March 2015 1,216,072 174,161 132,501 21,851 1,544,585
     
At 31 March 2014 1,182,808 172,833 124,536 16,063 1,496,240
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15. Association Tangible Fixed Assets – Housing Properties

 Housing Housing Completed Shared
 properties properties shared ownership
 held for under  ownership under 
 letting construction properties construction Total
 £’000  £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000
     
Cost     
At 1 April 2014 1,979,104 267,373 228,494 22,776 2,497,747
Additions 17,151 50,747 – 21,657 89,555
Tenure conversions (589) – 589 – –
Intra-group transfers 1,202 – (1,202) – –
Disposals (38,302) – (13,014) – (51,316)
Completed 64,163 (64,163) 19,388 (19,388) –
At 31 March 2015 2,022,729 253,957 234,255 25,045 2,535,986
     
Social housing and other grants     
At 1 April 2014 (1,045,499) (102,786) (105,593) (6,092) (1,259,970)
Received – (12,077) – (2,609) (14,686)
Tenure conversions 294 – (294) – –
Intra-group transfers (730) – 730 – –
Disposals 19,074 – 6,333 – 25,407
Completed (20,793) 20,793 (4,431) 4,431 –
At 31 March 2015 (1,047,654) (94,070) (103,255) (4,270) (1,249,249)
     
Accumulated depreciation and impairment     
At 1 April 2014 (112,966) (831) (6,598) (694) (121,089)
Impairment (410) (119) – – (529)
Intra-group transfers (11) – 11 – –
Tenure conversions 15 – (15) – –
Charged    (17,256) – (947) – (18,203)
Disposals 7,623 119 487 – 8,229
Completed (711) 711 (55) 55 –
At 31 March 2015 (123,716) (120) (7,117) (639) (131,592)
     
Net book value
     
At 31 March 2015 851,359 159,767 123,883 20,136 1,155,145

At 31 March 2014 820,639 163,756 116,303 15,990 1,116,688

Additions to housing properties during the year include capitalised interest of £3,949,000 (2014: £4,930,000) (note 
10) and capitalised administration costs of £2,705,000 (2014: £2,267,000).  The total amount of cumulative interest 
capitalised in housing properties is not separately identifiable. Total expenditure on works to existing properties during 
the year amounted to £19,709,000 (2014: £21,042,000) of which £17,502,000 (2014: £18,972,000) was capitalised.  
There are fixed charges on 21,206 housing properties (2014; 21,283). 
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16. Consolidated Tangible Fixed Assets – Other Fixed Assets

  Furniture Short-term Other Total 
 Freehold equipment leasehold leasehold other fixed 
 office and vehicles premises properties assets 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
     
Cost     
At 1 April 2014 10,568 24,248 2,775 6,659 44,250
Additions – 3,215 – – 3,215
Disposals (742) (36) (137) (1,544) (2,459)
At 31 March 2015 9,826 27,427 2,638 5,115 45,006
     
Social housing grants     
At 1 April 2014 – – – (6,291) (6,291)
Received in year – – – (225) (225)
Amortisation – – – 1,007 1,007
Transfers to rent premium grant – – – (872) (872)
Disposals – – –    1,555  1,555
At 31 March 2015 – – – (4,826) (4,826)
     
Accumulated depreciation     
At 1 April 2014 (2,530) (17,930) (1,165) (242)           (21,867)
Charge for year (67) (2,610) (128) (44) (2,849)
Disposals 213 2 137 45 397
At 31 March 2015 (2,384) (20,538) (1,156) (241)         (24,319)
     
Net book value     

At 31 March 2015 7,442 6,889 1,482 48 15,861

At 31 March 2014 8,038 6,318 1,610 126 16,092

Other leasehold properties include “Lease and management schemes” and “Living over the shop” homes.  Lease 
and management schemes are short term homes which are leased by the Group from private landlords or local 
councils and let out to social tenants.  Any grant received in excess of the lease costs is classified as deferred 
expenditure in the rent premium account within creditors.  Living over the shop homes are properties leased from 
private landlords which are let out to social tenants.  
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16. Association Tangible Fixed Assets – Other Fixed Assets

  Furniture Short-term Other Total 
 Freehold equipment leasehold leasehold other fixed 
 office and vehicles premises properties assets 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
     
Cost     
At 1 April 2014 6,270 22,910 2,650 6,659        38,489 
Additions – 3,213 - - 3,213
Disposals (611) – (137) (1,544) (2,292)
At 31 March 2015 5,659 26,123 2,513 5,115 39,410 
     
Social housing grant     
At 1 April 2014 – – – (6,291) (6,291)
Received in year – – – (225) (225)
Amortisation – – – 1,007 1,007
Transfers from rent premium grant – – – (872) (872)
Disposals – – –    1,555 1,555
At 31 March 2015 – – – (4,826) (4,826)
     
Accumulated depreciation     
At 1 April 2014 (2,394) (17,475) (1,165) (242) (21,276)
Charge for year  (41) (2,541) (128) (44) (2,754)
Disposals            177 – 137 45 359
At 31 March 2014 (2,258) (20,016) (1,156) (241) (23,671)
     
Net book value     

At 31 March 2015 3,401 6,107 1,357 48 10,913

At 31 March 2013 3,876 5,435 1,485 126 10,922

Other leasehold properties are “Lease and management schemes”.  Lease and management schemes are short 
term homes which are leased by the Association from private landlords or local councils and let out to social tenants.  
Any grant received in excess of the lease costs is classified as deferred expenditure in the rent premium account 
within creditors. 

 

17. Derivative Financial Instruments: Assets due after more than one year

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Derivative financial instruments expiring greater than one year 30,430 6,756 30,430 6,756
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18. Investments

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Balance at 1 April 14,724 12,891 2,840 1,564
Additions 4,113 1,317 – 1,318
Disposals (9,884) – (1,339) –
Realised gain/(loss) during the year (54) 370  (54) (42)
Unrealised gain during the year 656 146 – –
 9,555 14,724 1,447 2,840

At 31 March 2015 all of the investments were held with the Charities Official Investment Fund (COIF), JM Finn 
investment fund and the Islington Private Finance Initiative (PFI).  The Islington PFI is the Group’s investment in the 
provision of social housing in conjunction with the London Borough of Islington.

Investment in joint ventures
Joint ventures are accounted for in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 9 Associates and Joint 
Ventures in the consolidated financial statements using the gross equity method. Within the subsidiary undertaking’s 
individual financial statements in which the joint venture investment is held, the joint venture is accounted for as a 
fixed asset investment and shown at cost, less any impairment or any amounts written off.

The joint ventures that traded or were trading during the 2014/15 financial year are as follows:

Joint venture Partner Group interest Group voting rights

Packington Square LLP Rydon Limited 50% through Hyde Vale Limited 50% through Hyde Vale Limited

The amount included in respect of joint ventures comprises of the following:

 Packington Square LLP Total
  2015 2015 
 £’000 £’000

Turnover   8,713  8,713
Cost of sales   (5,205)  (5,205)
Operating surplus for the year  3,508  3,508

 Packington Square LLP Total
  2015 2015 
 £’000 £’000

Share of:   
Current assets   305  305
Liabilities due within one year   (292)  (292)
Liabilities due in more than one year   (13)  (13)
Net assets  –  –

Other investments
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18. Investments (continued)

19. Debtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Service charge debtors 5,779 4,676 5,023 4,224
Stock transfers 9,961 10,459 – –
Loans to Subsidiaries – – 82,325 72,370
Deferred tax asset 29 194 – –
Other 9,016 2,078 8,486 4,124
 24,785 17,407 95,834 80,718

The stock transfers represent stock improvement undertaken for leaseholders under the Large Scale Voluntary 
Stock Transfers. This is amortised over 30 years in line with the benefits received from the stock improvements. 

  Original Market Market
  cost value value
 2015  2015 2015 2014
 Units £’000 £’000 £’000

Investment statement for the Group    
Investment in Greenwich LLP – – – 6,368
Investment in PFI 1 842 1,448 1,503
COIF Investment fund 321,490 3,638 4,067 6,853
JM Finn investment – 3,814 4,040 –
Total  8,294 9,555 14,724

  Original Market Market
  cost value value
 2015  2015 2015 2014
 Units £’000 £’000 £’000

Investment statement for the Association    
Investment in PFI 1 842 1,448 1,503
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22. Cash at Bank and in Hand 

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash at bank 146,688 147,058 79,166 93,260

Of the cash held £47.4m is restricted (2014: £27.4m).  £10.5m (2014: £8.3m) is restricted and relates to Brent 
Co-Efficient Limited.  The funds are used to settle the Group/Association’s liabilities. All payments and transfers 
from these bank accounts have to be approved by the syndicate agent, Barclays. Restricted cash of £36.8m and 
£0.1m (2014: £18.9m and £0.2m) is held in Hyde Housing Association Limited and Hyde Charitable Trust Limited 
respectively.  

20. Stock

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Materials 110 135 – –-
Work in progress 90,540 76,054 34,095 19,166
Properties held for resale 14,919 6,049 7,851 4,084
 105,569 82,238 41,946 23,250

Stock consists of assets under construction or completed which are intended for sale.  The Group amount includes 
schemes which have been transferred from the Association into Hyde Vale Limited, a member of the Group, which 
is developing these assets for outright sale.  The values stated in the Group financial statements do not include any 
profit recognised by Hyde on the transfers, which occurred during the year on an arm’s length basis.  This figure 
includes nil impairment in properties held for resale in the year (2014:£nil).

21. Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year 

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Rental debtors 15,708 16,594 11,849 12,663
Provision for doubtful debts (6,620) (6,857) (5,381) (5,542)
 9,088 9,737 6,468 7,121
Social housing grant receivable 1,729 909 647 521
Prepayments and accrued income 2,781 4,454 2,684 4,395
Amounts due from group undertakings – – 34,130 12,764
Other debtors 12,619 10,637 5,678 8,088
 26,217 25,737 49,607 32,889
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23. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Housing loans (note 24) 8,420 8,128 7,362 7,111
Rent in advance 10,688 12,361 6,917 7,741
Amounts due to contractors 4,246 2,491 1,550 2,337
Trade creditors 4,015 3,278 2,217 1,105
Social housing grant in advance 120 30 120 30
Amounts due to Group undertakings – – 11,934 9,019
Taxation and social security costs 1,146 1,119 2,387 2,126
Other creditors and accruals 37,907 41,726 23,848 28,527
 66,542 69,133 56,334 57,996

24. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 
– Loans and Other Creditors

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Bonds*  325,770 311,741 325,770 311,741
Loans** 975,337 984,181 626,652 634,582
Rent premium grant in advance 1,012 1,885 1,012 1,885
Amounts due to Group undertakings – – 130,146 131,918
Other long-term creditors  26,057  26,308 25,706 23,077
 1,328,176 1,324,115 1,109,286 1,103,203

*Included in Bonds is a debt reserve set off against the Haven bond. This reserve is classified as an asset available for 
 sale and held at fair value. See note below.
** Included in Loans are loan cost balances set off against the loans and amortised over the lives of the loans.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments: Liabilities

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Derivative financial instruments expiring in more than one year 234,405 108,844 197,859 92,410

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Between one and two years 46,235 8,411 8,540 7,353
Between two and five years 148,415 185,620 110,212 122,503
More than five years 1,119,855 1,114,326 845,232 826,921
 1,314,505 1,308,357 963,984 956,777
Loan costs (13,398) (12,435) (11,562) (10,454)
 1,301,107 1,295,922 952,422 946,323
Less than one year 8,420 8,128 7,362 7,111
 1,309,527 1,304,050 959,784 953,434

Loans are generally secured by fixed charges on some 27,764 housing properties of the Group and are at rates of 
interest varying from 0.79% to 15.98%.  All loans are secured by charges on specific assets.  The average interest 
rate on borrowings held at year end was 5.36% (2014: 5.51%).  The Group’s interest rate risk management policy 
is designed to reduce volatility in cash flows and earnings.  Of particular importance is the reduction of potential 
increases in net interest payable (as a result of adverse movements in short and long term interest rates) to an 
acceptable level.  The size and maturity of debt is matched and hedged using a combination of various interest 
rate hedge instruments, primarily vanilla interest rate swaps, cancellable swaps and RPI swaps.  Group policy 
is to maintain minimum and maximum thresholds of fixed to floating rate debt (after allowing for the impact of 
its interest rate swaps) of 70%-95%.   The Group provided security on loans with charges on property for loans 
totalling £1,309.5m (2014: £1,304.1m) at the Balance Sheet date. Of the loans due greater than 5 years, £624.3m 
(2014: £608.1m) relates to instalment debts and £495.5m (2014: £506.2m) relates to non instalment debt.  

Debt reserve GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 9,780 10,433 9,780 10,433
Unrealised gain/(loss) during the year 817 (653) 817 (653)
 10,597 9,780 10,597 9,780

The debt reserve is held against the Haven bond, which is held within bonds above.

24. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 
– Loans and Other Creditors (continued)
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26. Recycled Capital Grant Fund

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At start of year 11,525 9,445 11,321 9,109
Inputs to fund:    
Grants recycled 10,319 8,628 9,320 8,386
Interest accrued 72 47 72 46
Recredits 301 – 301 –
Other Adjustments 38 – 38 –
Recycling of grant:    
New build (2,889) (6,391) (2,511) (6,044)
Other (189) (204) (189) (176)
At end of year 19,177 11,525 18,352 11,321

Amounts due for repayment to the HCA/GLA were £nil (2014: £nil).

The Recycled Capital Grant Fund (RCGF) arises from grant recovery on all other sales of properties originally funded by 
Social Housing Grant. Other than this it works in the same way as the Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF) (note 27).

27. Disposal Proceeds Fund

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At start of year 718 298 647 298
Inputs to fund:    
Grants recycled 1,132 464 1,008 393
Interest accrued 6 2 5 2
Recycling of grant:    
New build – (46) – (46)
At end of year 1,856 718 1,660 647

Amounts due for repayment to the HCA were £nil (2014: £nil).

The Disposals Proceeds Fund arises from the net proceeds of sales funded by Voluntary Purchase Grant. In accordance 
with Homes and Communities Agency requirements such proceeds are credited to the fund and together with accrued 
interest must be used to provide replacement properties. There is a time limit of three years within which the Group/
Association must use the proceeds.
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29. Called up Share Capital

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
 2015 2014
 £ £
At start of year 13 14
Issued 2 1
Cancelled (1) (2)
At end of the year 14 13

The shares carry no dividend rights and are cancelled on cessation of membership of the Association. Each member has 
the right to vote at members meetings. All shares are fully paid up.

28. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
At start of year 1,395 1,954 1,395 1,954
Additions 280 271 280 271
Release of provision (356) (830) (356) (830)
At end of year 1,319 1,395 1,319 1,395

Provisions for liabilities and charges are split between dilapidation and legal claims as follows:

Dilapidations provisions are included for all leased properties where the contract requires us to return the property 
to its original condition at the end of the lease, and are charged to the income and expenditure account within 
operating costs.

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
Dilapidations £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
At start of year 808 843 808 843
Additions 190 159 190 159
Release of provision (174) (194) (174) (194)
At end of year 824 808 824 808

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
Legal claims £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
At start of year 587 1,111 587 1,111
Additions 90 112 90 112
Release of provision (183) (636) (183) (636)
At end of year 494 587 494 587

Legal claim provisions are included for claims brought against the Group, and are charged to the income and 
expenditure account within operating costs.
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30. Reserves

  Cash Flow
 Revenue Hedge Restricted Revaluation 
 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Total
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
     
Consolidated reserves      
At 1 April 2014 304,839 (27,147) 3,380 2,443 283,515
Revaluation of investments – – – 577 577
Deficit for the year (30,641) – – – (30,641)
Actuarial gains/losses (10,217) – – – (10,217)
Transfer (366) – – 366 _
Gilt Lock Interest Hedge Amortisation – 512 – – 512
Restricted 136 – (136) – –
Consolidation Fair Value Adjustment (3,112) – – – (3,112)
Cashflow hedge transition amortisation – 1,069 – – 1,069
Interest flows recycled to income and  
expenditure account – 997 – – 997
Fair value movements on hedging instruments – (6,704) – – (6,704)
At 31 March 2015 260,639 (31,273) 3,244 3,386 235,996

The gilt lock costs result from the movement on gilt rates from the strike price at the time of entering the gilt lock to the 
time that the related transaction took place. They are amortised over the life of the bond/loans. Amortisation is taken to the 
income and expenditure account within interest payable. 
   
 2015 2014 
 £’000 £’000
   
 
Revenue reserve excluding defined benefit pension schemes 276,859 311,846
Share of pension deficit (note 37) (16,220) (7,007)
Revenue reserve 260,639 304,839
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30. Reserves (continued)

31. Capital Commitments

  Cash Flow
 Revenue Hedge Restricted Revaluation
 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Total
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Association reserves      
At 1 April 2014 117,028 (23,735) 2,629 1,194  97,116
Revaluation of investments – – – 817 817
Deficit for the year (16,431) – – – (16,431)
Defined benefit pension schemes  
– actuarial movement (7,390) – – – (7,390)
Gilt Lock Interest Hedge Amortisation – 360 – – 360
Hedge transition amortisation – 725 – – 725
Interest flows recycled to income and  
expenditure account – 997 – – 997
Fair value movements on hedging instruments – (6,704) – – (6,704)
At 31 March 2015 93,207 (28,357) 2,629 2,011   69,490

The gilt lock costs result from the movement on gilt rates from the strike price at the time of entering the gilt lock to 
the time that the related transaction took place. They are amortised over the life of the bond/loans. Amortisation is 
taken to the income and expenditure account within interest payable. 

    2015 2014 
    £’000 £’000
    
Revenue reserve excluding defined benefit pension schemes    103,395 120,263
Share of pension deficit (note 37)    (10,188) (3,235)
Revenue reserve    93,207 117,028

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for  
in the financial statements 116,870 166,906 72,523 113,493
Capital expenditure authorised by the Board but not contracted for 558,513 180,401 235,856 150,734
At 31 March 675,383 347,307 308,379 264,227

These commitments will be funded by property sales, loans, grants and existing reserves.
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32. Operating Leases

33. Contingent Liabilities

34. Related Party Transactions

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases for plant and equipment are as follows:

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
    
    
Within one year 276 510 147 –
Between two and five years 75 352 62 254
 351 862 209 254

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases for buildings are as follows:

 GROUP AND  
 ASSOCIATION
 2015 2014
 £ £
   
Within one year 159 –
Between two and five years 132 192
Over five years 2,375 2,594
 2,666 2,786

There were no material contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Certain Board and committee members, acting in their capacity as tenant representatives, may be tenants of the 
Group/Association.  Such tenancies are granted on the same terms and conditions and managed on the same basis 
as other tenants of the Group/Association.

Intra-group transactions between Hyde Housing Association Limited and its non-regulated subsidiaries are 
summarised as follows:
• Income from Hyde Vale Limited and Brent Co-Efficient Limited relating to interest on intercompany loans, sales 

agent and housing management fees and land sales.  The total of these transactions was £5.2m (2014: £6.1m).
• Expenditure to Hyde Vale Limited and Hyde New Build Limited relating to land sales and construction services.  

The total of these transactions are £59.3m (2014: £56.3m).
• Assets include long term and short term intercompany debtors and accrued interest receivable from Brent Co-

Efficient Limited and Hyde Vale Limited, totalling £67.5m (2014: £66.9m).
• Liabilities include an intercompany loan and short term intercompany creditors owed to Brent Co-Efficient Limited 

and Hyde New Build Limited, totalling £141.3m (2014: £146.4m).

Martlet Homes Limited incurred expenditure to Hyde New Build Limited for construction services of £5.3m (2014: 
£6.7m), and has a short term intercompany creditor for £2.8m (2014: £2.6m).
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35. Legislative Provisions

36. Payments to Creditors

The following managed undertakings are subsidiaries by virtue of the ability of the Association to control the 
composition of their Board and, in accordance with financial reporting standards, the results of the undertakings 
are incorporated in the Group consolidated financial statements.  The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling 
party is Hyde Housing Association Limited, incorporated in the United Kingdom.  Where indicated, subsidiaries are 
Registered Providers of Social Housing (RPSH).

The Group/Association has a policy of paying suppliers within agreed payment terms. Subject to resolution of any 
queries or discrepancies on specific invoices, the usual policy is to pay creditors within 30 days.

Name of subsidiary undertaking Principal Activity

Martlet Homes Limited (RPSH) A registered provider of social housing based in 
Chichester operating predominantly in Surrey, Sussex 
and Hampshire

Hyde Southbank Homes Limited (RPSH) A registered provider of social housing via a Large Scale 
Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) based in Lambeth

Hillside Housing Trust Limited (RPSH) A registered provider of social housing responsible 
for managing the Stonebridge Estate in the London 
Borough of Brent

Hyde Vale Limited A company with non-charitable status undertaking 
market rent and outright sales activities in London, 
the South East of England, Cambridgeshire and 
Northamptonshire

Brent Co-Efficient Limited A company limited by guarantee, acting as a special 
purpose vehicle to deliver a PFI project in the London 
Borough of Brent

Hyde New Build Limited A company with non-charitable status undertaking 
design and build on behalf of the Hyde Group and its 
subsidiaries.

Hyde Charitable Trust A charity that funds regeneration activities that support 
disadvantaged people in London and the South East of 
England

Hyde PRS Company Limited Limited Company registered in England and Wales that 
provides private rented accommodation.

New Square Management Ltd To manage the public square that forms part of the 
Site J Development in Brighton. Owned by Hyde Vale 
Limited.

Packington Square LLP Limited Partnership registered in England and Wales. 
Owned by Hyde Vale Limited.

One Preston Park LLP Limited Partnership registered in England and Wales. 
Jointly owned by Hyde Vale Limited and Hyde New 
Build Limited.
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37. Pension Schemes

The pensions of employees of the Hyde Group are 
administered through four schemes which provide 
defined benefits relating to pay and service and a fifth 
scheme which is a defined contribution scheme.

Hyde Housing Association Limited Defined Benefit 
Pension Scheme (HHADBPS)
Hyde Housing Association Limited operates a funded 
defined benefit scheme that closed to new members 
on 1 July 2004.  All new employees after that date were 
given the option to join a defined contribution scheme.  
From 1 April 2007, the scheme introduced benefit 
changes for future service (for all sections apart from the 
Passport 2000 section).  Members’ benefits under the 
new arrangements are based on Career Average Related 
Earnings (CARE), rather than Final Pensionable Salary.  
Other aspects of the Plan design, such as the accrual 
rate, were also changed.

As at 31 March 2015 there were 129 (2014: 137) 
current employees of the Group who were members 
of the Career Average Related Earnings section of 
the Hyde Housing Association Limited Scheme.  The 
FRS 17 disclosures of pension reserves and liabilities 
booked into the financial statements of Hyde Housing 
Association Limited relate to all 129 members of the 
scheme. There were also 580 deferred pensioners and 
221 active pensioners.

Contributions to the HHADBPS are charged to the 
Income and Expenditure account so as to spread the 
cost of pensions over the employees’ working lives.  
The pension contribution rate, which includes liability for 
pension increases, has been determined in accordance 
with the advice of professionally qualified consulting 
actuaries based on an actuarial valuation made as at 31 
March 2012 using the attained age method.

London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund (LBLPF)
On 31 March 2015, 2 (2014: 3) current employees of 
Hyde Housing Association Limited were members of the 
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund.  There were 
also 18 deferred pensioners and 13 active pensioners.

Contributions are made to the London Borough of 
Lambeth Pension Fund which is administered by the 
London Borough of Lambeth.  It is a defined benefits 
pension scheme providing benefits held separately from 
the assets of the Group.

Contributions to the scheme are charged to the Income 
and Expenditure account of the Group.  The pension 
contribution cost, which includes liability for pension 
increases, has been determined in accordance with the 
advice of professionally qualified consulting actuaries 
based on an actuarial valuation made as at 31 March 
2013 using approximate valuation methods.  As the 
scheme is closed to new members, under the projected 
unit method current service costs will increase as the 
members of the scheme approach retirement.

West Sussex County Council Pension Fund 
(WSCCPF)
Martlet Homes Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, is 
an admitted member of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme.  Contributions are made to the West Sussex 
County Council Pension Fund which is administered 
by West Sussex County Council.  On 31 March 2015, 
83 current employees of Martlet Homes Limited were 
members of the West Sussex County Council Pension 
Fund. There were also 183 deferred pensioners and 
92 active pensioners.  It is a defined benefit pension 
scheme providing benefits held separately from the 
assets of the Group.  Contributions to the scheme are 
charged to the Income and Expenditure account of the 
Group.  

The pension contribution cost, which includes liability for 
pension increases, has been determined in accordance 
with the advice of professionally qualified consulting 
actuaries based on an actuarial valuation made as at 31 
March 2013 using approximate valuation methods.

The majority of the employees who participate in the 
scheme are employees of Martlet Homes Limited.  
However, there are some members who are employed 
by the other Group companies.  The Association is 
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets 
and liabilities for those employees of the scheme and 
therefore accounts for the pension scheme for those 
employees, within the Association as if it were a defined 
contribution scheme.  The scheme is accounted for fully 
within the Group financial statements.
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37. Pension Schemes (continued)

The Pensions Trust Social Housing Pension Scheme 
(SHPS)
Hyde participates in SHPS (the Scheme).  The Scheme 
is funded and is contracted-out of the State Pension 
scheme.  SHPS is a multi-employer defined benefits 
scheme.  Employer participation in the Scheme is 
subject to adherence with the employer responsibilities 
and obligations as set out in the ‘SHPS House Policies 
and Rules Employer Guide’.  The Scheme operated a 
single benefit structure, final salary with a 1/60th accrual 
rate until 31 March 2007.

Hyde has operated the final salary with a 1/60th accrual 
rate benefit structure for active members as at 31 
March 2015.  This does not reflect any benefit structure 
changes made from April 2011.

The Pension Trustee commissions an actuarial valuation 
of the Scheme every three years.  The main purpose 
of the valuation is to determine the financial position 
of the Scheme in order to determine the level of the 
future contributions required, in respect of each benefit 
structure, so that the Scheme can meet its pension 
obligations as they fall due.  From April 2007 the split 
of the total contribution rate between member and 
employer is set at individual employer level, subject 
to the employer paying no less than 50% of the total 
contribution rate.  From April 1 2010 the requirement for 
employers to pay at least 50% of the total contribution 
rate no longer applies.

This actuarial valuation assesses whether the Scheme’s 
assets at the valuation date are likely to be sufficient to 
pay the pension benefits accrued by members as at the 
valuation date.  Asset values are calculated by reference 
to market levels.  Accrued pension benefits are valued 
by discounting expected future benefits payments using 
a discount rate calculated by reference to the expected 
future investment returns.  

It is not possible in the normal course of events to 
identify on a consistent and reasonable basis the share 
of underlying assets and liabilities belonging to individual 
participating employers.  This is because the Scheme 
is a multi-employer Scheme where the Scheme assets 
are co-mingled for investment purposes, and benefits 
are paid from total Scheme assets.  Accordingly, due 
to the nature of the Scheme, the accounting charge 
for the period under FRS17 represents the employer 
contribution payable.

The last formal valuation of the Scheme was performed 
as at 30 September 2011 by a professionally qualified 
Actuary using the Projected Unit Method.  The market 
value of the Scheme’s assets at the valuation date was 
£2,062 million.  The valuation revealed a shortfall of 
assets compared with the value of liabilities of  
£1,035 million, equivalent to a past service funding level 
of 67%.  The estimated amount of withdrawal liability 
for Hyde Housing Association Limited is £12.2m. The 
SHPS deficit payments from the 2008 and 2011 Triennial 
Actuarial Valuations respectively are £0.1m (increasing at 
a rate of 4.7% pa) and £0.1m (increasing at a rate of 3% 
pa) for 15 years from the date of valuation.

The financial assumptions underlying the valuation as at 
30 September 2011 were as follows:

 % pa
Valuation Discount Rates: 
Pre-Retirement 7.0
Non Pensioner Post Retirement 4.2
Pensioner Post Retirement 4.2
Pensionable Earnings Growth  2.5 for three years  
 then RPI + 1.5
Price Inflation – RPI 2.9
Price Inflation – CPI 2.4
 
Expenses for death-in-service insurance, administration 
and Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy are included in 
the contribution rate.  On 31 March 2015, 8 (2014: 9) 
current employees of Hyde Housing Association Limited 
participated in the Social Housing Pension Scheme.

Hyde Housing Association Limited Defined 
Contribution Pension Scheme (HHADCPS)
Since 1 July 2004 all new employees are able to join the 
HHADCPS.  On 31 March 2015 there were 1,004 (2014: 
954) current employees in total who were members 
of the HHADCPS, made up of 817 current employees 
of Hyde Housing Association Limited and 187 current 
employees of Martlet Homes Limited.  There were 
also 493 (2014: 257) deferred pensioners and no active 
pensioners.

The employer contribution rate payable is dependent on 
the contribution by the employee as follows:

Employee Contributes Employer Contributes

1% 2%
3% 6%
4% 8%
5% 10%
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37. Pension Schemes (continued)

Pension contributions have been made to the Hyde Group pension schemes as follows:

 GROUP ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
Contributions made:    
HHADBPS 842 987 842 987
LBLPF 158 116 158 116
WSCCPF 1,065 626 – –
SHPS 230 234 230 234
HHADCPS 2,017 2,258 2,017 2,258
 4,312 4,221 3,247 3,595

  GROUP  ASSOCIATION
 2015  2014 2015 2014
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
Contributions outstanding:    
HHADBPS 58 60 58 60
LBLPF 14 8 14 8
WSCCPF 123 62 123 62
SHPS 19 11 19 11
HHADCPS 276 243 276 243
 490 384 490 384
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37. Pension Schemes (continued)

A summary of the movement in pension assets and liabilities for the Group’s defined benefit pension funds is 
shown below:

 HHADBPS LBLPF WSCCPF TOTAL
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

As at 31 March 2015    
Present value of defined benefit obligation (88,559) (5,188) (39,576) (133,323)
Fair value of fund assets 79,724 3,835 33,544 117,103
Net liability in the balance sheet at 31 March 2015 (8,835) (1,353) (6,032) (16,220)
    
Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation    
Opening defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 2014 70,456 4,540 32,477 107,473
Current service cost 940      36 713 1,689
Interest cost 3,026     192 1,401 4,619
Contributions by members 222      12 210 444
Actuarial (gains)/losses 15,572     584 5,444 21,600
Benefits paid (1,657)      (176) (669) (2,502)
Closing defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2015 88,559 5,188 39,576 133,323
    
Movements in fair value of fund assets    
Opening fair value of employer assets as at 1 April 2014 68,332 3,429 28,705 100,466
Expected return on assets 3,677 194 1,764 5,635
Contributions by members 222 12 210 444
Contributions by employer 842 158 915 1,915
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits – – 2 2
Actuarial gains (actual return on assets  
less expected return on assets) 8,548 218 2,617 11,383
Benefits paid (1,897) (176) (669) (2,742)
Closing fair value of scheme assets as at 31 March 2015 79,724 3,835 33,544 117,103
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37. Pension Schemes (continued)

 HHADBPS LBLPF WSCCPF TOTAL
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Year to 31 March 2014    
Present value of defined benefit obligation (70,456) (4,540) (32,477) (107,473)
Fair value of fund assets 68,332 3,429 28,705  100,466
Net liability in the balance sheet at 31 March 2014 (2,124) (1,111)      (3,772) (7,007)
 
Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation    
Opening defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 2013 71,614 4,322 29,573 105,509
Current service cost 1,001 45 816 1,862
Interest cost 2,939 194 1,340 4,473
Contributions by members 238 10 214 462
Actuarial (gains)/losses (3,979) 55 1,114 (2,810)
Losses on curtailments – – 100 100
Benefits paid (1,357) (86) (680) (2,123)
Closing defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2014 70,456 4,540 32,477 107,473
    
Movements in fair value of fund assets    
Opening fair value of employer assets as at 1 April 2013 64,449 3,209 26,456   91,114
Expected return on assets 3,323 158 1,379 4,860
Contributions by members 238 10 214 462
Contributions by employer 987 116 626 1,729
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits – – 2 2
Actuarial gains (actual return on assets  
less expected return on assets) 991 22 708 1,721
Benefits paid (1,656) (86) (680) (2,422)
Closing fair value of scheme assets as at 31 March 2014 68,332 3,429 28,705 100,466

Year to 31 March 2015    
Current service cost 940 36 713 1,689
Interest cost 3,026 192 1,401 4,619
Expected return on employer assets (3,677) (194) (1,764) (5,635)
Total 289 34 350 673

    
Year to 31 March 2014    
Current service cost 1,001 45 816  1,862
Interest cost 2,939 194 1,340 4,473
Expected return on employer assets (3,323) (158) (1,379) (4,860)
Losses on curtailments – – 100 100
Total 617 81 877 1,575
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37. Pension Schemes (continued)

History of Schemes

 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

HHADBPS     
Present value of scheme liabilities (88,559) (70,456) (71,614) (59,612) (64,551)
Present value of scheme assets 79,724 68,332 64,449 58,390 55,871
Deficit (8,835) (2,124) (7,165) (1,222) (8,680)
     
Experience gains/(losses) on assets 8,548 991 3,613 (1,115) 973
Experience gains/(losses) on liabilities         141         388 (1,973) 10,800 – 
     
Expected return on assets 3,677 3,323 3,073 3,675 3,420
Actual return on assets 12,225 4,314 6,686 2,560 4,393
     
LBLPF     
Present value of scheme liabilities (5,188) (4,540) (4,322) (3,686) (3,313)
Present value of scheme assets 3,835 3,429 3,209 2,729 2,479
Deficit (1,353) (1,111) (1,113) (957) (834)
     
Experience gains/(losses) on assets 218 22 248 13 (349)
Experience gains/(losses) on liabilities 41 105 7 (56) 390
     
Expected return on assets 194 158 150 159 189
Actual return on assets 412 232 399 172 (160)
     
WSCCPF     
Present value of scheme liabilities (39,576) (32,477) (29,573) (24,360) (21,651)
Present value of scheme assets 33,544 28,705 26,456 22,641 21,366
Deficit (6,032) (3,772) (3,117) (1,719) (285)
     
Experience gains/(losses) on assets 2,617 708 2,061 (761) (213)
Experience gains/(losses) on liabilities 284 231 34 (263) 2,993
     
Expected return on assets 1,764 1,379 1,325 1,493 1,428
Actual return on assets 4,381 2,538 3,390 732 1,215
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37. Pension Schemes (continued)

 2015 2014
   £’000 £’000
  
HHADBPS  
Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year recognised in STRSD    (7,024) 4,970
Cumulative actuarial loss   (17,816) (10,792)
  
Cumulative actuarial loss as a % of scheme liabilities   (20.12%) (15.32%)
  
LBLPF  
Actuarial loss for the year recognised in STRSD   (366) (33)
Cumulative actuarial loss   (466) (100)
  
Cumulative actuarial loss as a % of scheme liabilities   (8.98%) (2.20%)
  
WSCCPF  
Actuarial loss for the year recognised in STRSD   (2,827) (406)
Cumulative actuarial loss   (7,296) (4,469)
  
Cumulative actuarial loss as a % of scheme liabilities   (18.44%) (13.76%)

The fair value of assets and the present value of liabilities in the schemes at each balance sheet date, along with the 
principal actuarial assumptions used were:

 HHADBPS LBLPF WSCCPF TOTAL
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

As at 31 March 2015  
The fair value of the assets: 
Equities     24,541 2,224 24,822 51,587
Corporate Bonds   23,029 – – 23,029
Bonds   24,235 1,112 5,032 30,379
Property     7,856 384 2,013 10,253
Cash       63 115 1,677 1,855
Total market value of assets 79,724 3,835 33,544 117,103
Actuarial value of liabilities (88,559) (5,188) (39,576) (133,323)
Deficit (8,835) (1,353) (6,032) (16,220)

 HHADBPS LBLPF WSCCPF TOTAL
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

As at 31 March 2014    
The fair value of the assets:     
Equities    31,941 1,955 22,390 56,286
Corporate Bonds 17,286 – – 17,286
Bonds     9,319 960 3,445 13,724
Property      9,772 377 2,296 12,445
Cash       14 137 574 725
Total market value of assets  68,332 3,429 28,705 100,466
Actuarial value of liabilities (70,456) (4,540) (32,477) (107,473)
Deficit (2,124) (1,111) (3,772) (7,007)
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Mortality assumptions:
In compiling the FRS 17 disclosures the actuaries have 
used the following mortality assumptions:

Hyde Housing Association Limited  
Defined Benefit Scheme
Life expectancy is based on 115% PNFAOO and 125% 
PNMAOO tables, using individuals’ date of birth and 
allowing for future mortality improvements based on the 
medium cohort and a 1.5% underpin. Based on these 
assumptions, the average future life expectancies based 
on a current pensioner aged 65 at the valuation date and 
a future pensioner from age 65, but aged 45 at the 
valuation date are summarised below:

 Males Females
Current pensioners 21.30 years 24.60 years
Future pensioners 24.10 years 27.40 years

London Borough of Lambeth  
Defined Benefit Scheme
Life expectancy is based on the Fund’s VitaCurves 2007 
with improvements in line with the CMI 2010 model 

assuming the current rate of improvements has peaked 
and will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% p.a. 
Based on these assumptions, the average future life 
expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

 Males Females
Current pensioners 21.70 years 24.00 years
Future pensioners 24.30 years 26.60 years

West Sussex County Council  
Defined Benefit Scheme
Life expectancy is based on the Fund’s VitaCurves 
with improvements in line with 80% of CMIB’s 
Medium Cohort subject to a 10 year lag with minimum 
improvements of 1% p.a. from 2010. Based on these 
assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 
65 are summarised below:
 
 Males Females
Current pensioners 24.40 years 25.80 years
Future pensioners 26.90 years 28.50 years

37. Pension Schemes (continued)

  
Principal actuarial assumptions: HHADBPS LBLPF WSCCPF
   
As at 31 March 2015   
Inflation 3.10% 2.40% 2.40%
Salary increases 3.10% 4.30% 3.80%
Pension increases in payment 2.85% 2.40% 2.40%
Discount rate 3.25% 3.20% 3.20%
Expected return on equities 5.20% 3.20% 3.20%
Expected return on corporate bonds 3.00% N/A N/A
Expected return on bonds 2.20% 3.20% 3.20%
Expected return on property 4.20% 3.20% 3.20%
Expected return on cash 0.50% 3.20% 3.20%

   
Principal actuarial assumptions: HHADBPS LBLPF WSCCPF
   
As at 31 March 2014   
Inflation 3.30% 2.80% 2.80%
Salary increases 3.30% 4.60% 4.10%
Pension increases in payment 3.05% 2.80% 2.80%
Discount rate 4.30% 4.30% 4.30%
Expected return on equities 6.50% 6.60% 6.70%
Expected return on corporate bonds 4.30% N/A N/A
Expected return on bonds 3.50% 4.30% 3.70%
Expected return on property 5.50% 4.80% 4.80%
Expected return on cash 0.50% 3.70% 3.70%
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38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management

The Group’s Corporate Finance and Treasury function is 
responsible for the management of financing activities and 
control of the associated risks. Other areas of financial risk 
such as tenant arrears are the responsibility of the relevant 
departments within the Group’s Housing Services 
function.

The Group’s financing activities are governed in 
accordance with Group Board approved policies and the 
management of other areas of financial risk are reviewed 
and approved by the Group Audit Committee. The 
Treasury function does not operate as a profit centre.

There is further explanation of the Group’s approach to 
financial risk management in the Group Statement of 
Internal Controls and the Report of the Board and 
Operating and Financial Review.

The Group has adopted the amendment to Financial 
Reporting Standard 29 for financial instruments that are 
measured in the Balance Sheet at fair value. This requires 
disclosure of fair value measurements in accordance with 
the following fair value measurement hierarchy:
• Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 

for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within 

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
from prices);

• Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not 
based on observable market data (that is, unobservable 
inputs).

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured and 
recognised at fair value include:

Financial assets
As at 31 March, the Group’s financial asset balances were 
as follows::

  GROUP
Financial assets at  2015 2014
fair value through  £’000 £’000
Income and Expenditure 
Derivative financial  
instruments (note 17) 30,430 6,756
 30,430 6,756

The valuation techniques used to value the above 
derivative financial instruments maximise the use of 
market data where it is available and rely as little as 
possible on estimates made by the Group. All significant 
inputs required to value the above investments are 
observable and as such the Group has classified them as 
Level 2. 

 GROUP
 2015 2014 
Loans and receivables  £’000 £’000

Investments (unlisted) 1,448 1,503

Debtors due in greater than one year:   
Service charge debtors 5,779 4,676

Debtors due in less than one year:  
Rental debtors 9,088 9,737
Other debtors 12,709 10,637
Social housing grant receivable 1,729 909
 23,527 21,283

Cash at bank and in hand 146,688 147,058

 177,422 174,520

Investments in the Group Balance Sheet were £9.6m 
at 31 March 2015 (2014: £14.7m).  Of this value, £8.2m 
(2014: £13.2m) was classified as available for sale 
and £1.4m (2014: £1.5m) were classified as loans and 
receivables.

Of the above loans and receivables balances, rental 
debtors and other debtors totalling £23.5m (2014: 
£21.3m) derive from debtors due within one year on the 
Balance Sheet.  Debtors due within one year totalled 
£26.2m as at 31 March 2015 (2014: £25.7m).  The 
remaining balances of £2.7m (2014: £4.4m) are not 
considered to fall within the definition of a financial 
asset.  Debtors due greater than one year totalled 
£24.8m as at 31 March 2015 (2014: £17.4m) of which 
£5.8m (2014: £4.7m) are classified as financial assets.  

 GROUP
 2015 2014 
Available for sale assets  £’000 £’000

Investments   8,107 13,221
Sinking fund investment  
offset of loan 10,597 9,780
 18,704 23,001
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Financial liabilities
As at 31 March, the Group’s financial liability balances 
were as follows:
 GROUP
 2015 2014 
Other financial liabilities  £’000 £’000
Creditors due in less than one year:   
Housing loans  8,420 8,128
Rent in advance 10,688 12,361
Amounts due to contractors 4,246 2,491
Trade creditors 4,015 3,278
Social housing grant in advance 120 30
Other creditors and accruals 36,744 41,726
 64,233 68,014

Creditors due in greater than one year:  

Loans 1,325,102 1,318,137
Other long term creditors 36,953 23,836
 1,362,055 1,341,973

 1,426,888 1,409,987

Creditors due within one year as disclosed in the Balance 
Sheet totalled £66.5m (2014: £69.1m).  The difference 
between the Balance Sheet and the amounts disclosed 
above of £2.3m (2014: £1.1m), relates to balances that 
do not fall within the definition of a financial liability.   

Loans and other creditors due in greater than one year as 
disclosed in the Balance Sheet totalled £1,328.2m (2014: 
£1,324.1m).  Included within this is the offset of the debt 
reserve of £10.6m (2014: £9.8m).  The difference 
between the Balance Sheet and the amounts disclosed 
above of £33.9m (2014: £17.9m), relates to balances 
that do not fall within the definition of a financial liability. 

  GROUP
Other financial liabilities  2015 2014
due in more than one year  £’000 £’000
 
Derivative financial instruments 234,405 108,844
 234,405 108,844

All significant inputs required to value the above 
investments are observable and as such the Group has 
classified them as Level 2.

Derivative instruments

Further analysis of financial instruments is as follows:

 2015 2014
 Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
Other financial liabilities due in more than one year £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Derivatives not designated as accounting hedges:    
Interest rate swaps – fixed to float – – – –
Interest rate swaps – float to fixed 18,461 223,217 6,756 100,157
 18,461 223,217 6,756 100,157
    
Derivatives designated as accounting hedges:    
Fair value hedges – on interest rate swaps  
– fixed to float 11,969 – – 3,206
Cash flow hedges- on interest rate swaps  
– float to fixed – 11,188 – 5,481
 30,340 234,405 6,756 108,844

38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
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GROUP Brought  I&E impact Taken directly Carried
Financial Year Forward in Year to Reserves Forward
 £m £m £m £m

2011 (18.3) (5.4) – (23.7)
2012 (23.7) (56.4) (1.1) (81.2)
2013 (81.2) (27.7) (1.6) (110.6)
2014 (110.6) 27.3 – (83.3)
2015 (83.3) (112.4) – (195.8)

38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

Valuation
Balances are valued in accordance with Note 1: 
Accounting Policies – Financial Instruments. Fair value 
equates to book value except in the following cases.

Derivative financial instruments are measured at 
fair value. The fair value of the derivative financial 
instruments is determined using the discounted future 
cash flows methodology. The swap rate data used 

for discounting the flows is provided to the Group by 
external advisors. 

Valuations for derivative financial instruments are based 
on internal valuations using external valuation products 
and counterparty valuations. 

Listed investments are measured at fair value. The 
fair value equates to the market value of these listed 
investments at the balance sheet date.

 2015 2014
 Book value/Cost  Fair value Book value/Cost  Fair value
GROUP £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed assets, derivative assets and investments    
Derivative financial instruments (note 17) – 30,430 – 6,756
Investments (note 18) 8,294 9,555 11,829 14,724
    
Debtors due greater than one year (note 19) 24,785 24,785 17,407 17,407 
   
Current assets    
Debtors (note 21) 26,217 26,217 25,737 25,737
Cash at bank and in hand (note 22) 146,688 146,688 147,058 147,058
Creditors (note 23) (66,542) (66,542) (69,133) (69,133)
  
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year    
Bond (note 24) (325,770) (325,770) (311,741) (311,741)
Bank loans and mortgages (note 24) (975,337) (975,337) (984,181) (984,181)
Other creditors (note 24) (27,069) (27,069) (28,193) (28,193)
Derivative financial instruments (note 25) – (234,405) – (108,844)
Recycled capital grant fund (note 26) (19,177) (19,177) (11,525) (11,525)
Disposal proceeds fund (note 27) (1,856) (1,856) (718) (718)

The following methods and assumptions have been applied in determining the value of the financial instruments in the 
table above:

(i) The book value of loans with a maturity of less than one year is assumed to equate to their carrying value as these 
are floating rate borrowings where interest rates are set to market rates.

(ii) The fair value of fixed loans greater than one year is established by utilising discounted cash flow valuation models 
or listed market prices where available.

(iii) The fair value of balances shown above at a variable rate of interest is assumed to approximate to their book value.

The cumulative impact to the Group Income and Expenditure account of FRS 26 (derivative instrument) adjustments 
has been:
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38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rate changes 
in the future may materially affect the Group’s assets, 
liabilities and cash flows.  The Group considers the 
management of its exposure and the exposure of 
its borrowing subsidiaries to interest rate risk to be a 
critical element in achieving its business objectives.  
The Group is able to manage its exposure to interest 
rate risk through the medium of its loan agreements 
and the embedded hedging instruments contained 
therein and by arranging hedging with approved 
counterparties governed by ISDA agreements.  The 
Group has determined to adopt a strategy of putting into 
place a portfolio of hedges incorporating a mix of styles 
and maturities that will provide it with (i) substantial 
protection against the effects of adverse movements 
in interest rates, and (ii) an appropriate spread of 
risks.  The Group’s Corporate Finance and Treasury 
department maintains sufficient cash and readily 
available committed credit facilities to fund the Group’s 
investment programmes and contracted commitments 
in the short to medium term.

The weighted average interest rate of the Group’s fixed 
rate liabilities is 5.6% (2014: 5.6%).  The weighted 
average interest rate of the Group’s net financial 
liabilities is 5.4% (2014: 5.5%).  The weighted average 
life of Group fixed rate liabilities is 22 years (2014: 22 
years).

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to 
access liquid funds due to: 
• a lack of available facilities
• a lack of identification of the need to draw on available 

facilities.

The Treasury function ensures that the above risks are 
managed by preparing cash forecasts for the short 
to long term to ensure that all financial commitment 
requirements are met.

The forecasts identify when existing facilities expire 
and further facilities are negotiated and secured well in 
advance of them being needed.

The Treasury function also manages a database of the 
Group’s housing stock in order to identify unencumbered 
stock for security of new facilities.  A programme of 
valuations is maintained to ensure that optimum value as 
security value is gained from the Group’s housing stock.  
These systems ensure that facilities are available to the 
Group which are secured and available to draw on as 
required.

The Group’s liquidity policy is to maintain sufficient 
liquid resources to cover cash flow requirements and 
fluctuations in funding to enable the Group to meet its 
financial obligations.

The Group has not defaulted on any of its loan facilities 
at any point during the year and is in compliance with 
all of its financial covenants contained within its loan 
facilities.

The Group monitors the maturity and duration of its 
borrowings to ensure an orderly repayment profile, 
thereby reducing refinancing and liquidity risk. The 
Treasury function ensures refinancing risk is kept low 
by ensuring that no more than 20% of the Group loan 
portfolio matures in any one year. 
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38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

The following is an analysis of the anticipated contracted cash flows including interest up to 30 years and finance 
charges payable for the Group’s financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis. For the purpose of this table, debt is 
defined as bank loans and bonds. Interest is calculated based on debt held at 31 March:

Group   Other Interest on
As 31 March 2015   liabilities Derivative  
  Interest not in net financial
 Debt on debt debt instruments Total
 £m £m £m £m £m
Contracted cash flows     
Due less than one year 8.4 61.1 58.1 5.0 132.7
Between one and two years 46.2 68.0 27.1 5.1 146.5
Between two and three years 76.4 72.0 – 4.9 153.2
Between three and four years 45.8 73.1 – 7.7 126.7
Between four and five years 26.2 72.8 – 7.8 106.7
Greater than five years 1,106.5 808.8 – 170.6 2,085.9 
Gross contractual cash flows 1,309.5 1,155.9 85.2 201.1 2,751.7

Group   Other Interest on
As 31 March 2014   liabilities Derivative  
  Interest not in net financial
 Debt on debt debt instruments Total
 £m £m £m £m £m
Contracted cash flows     
Due less than one year 8.1 68.1 60.9 7.2 144.3
Between one and two years 8.4 70.1 30.4 6.9 115.8
Between two and three years 51.9 76.6 – 6.4 134.9
Between three and four years 82.1 79.3 – 5.9 167.3
Between four and five years 51.5 76.9 – 6.6 135.0
Greater than five years 1,102.0 775.1 – 150.3  2,027.4
Gross contractual cash flows 1,304.0 1,146.1 91.3 183.3 2,724.7

Credit Risk
Credit risk applies to all debtor balances, cash balances 
and debt finance and falls into two categories, financial 
and operational:

Financial Credit Risk
The Group manages credit risk by carrying out (at least) 
monthly credit checks on all counterparties from which 
the Group either sources funds or places deposits. 
The financial credit risk is mitigated to some extent 
by the existence of borrowing facilities with deposit 
counterparties. It is the Group’s policy not to take or 
place funds with any financial institution which is not 

accepted as a counterparty in the Group’s Financial 
Regulations. Such counterparties are approved by the 
Board but only on the achievement of the desired credit 
agency rating. The Group only places deposits with 
counterparties with an investment grade. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

List of Counterparties the Group has deposits with

  Approved Group  2015 2014
Counterparty Rating~ Limit £’000 £’000 £’000
Santander Plc  A2 20,000 20,000 13,495
Nationwide  A2 20,000 10,000 –
Royal Bank of Scotland Baa2 20,000 6,261 10,052
Goldman Sachs Aaa* 100,000 53,288 9,642
RBS Liquidity Fund  Aaa* 100,000 – 42,119
Prime Rate Capital Aaa*  100,000 – 1,287
Lloyds TSB/ HBOS  A2 20,000 – 10,000
Clydesdale Bank  Baa2 10,000 – 10,000
Bank of Scotland  A1 20,000 – 5,010
Close Brothers A3 10,000 10,000 10,000
   99,549 111,605

~ Rating as at 31 March 2015
*Aaa is the rating of the investment funds that the deposits are held in and not the rating of the counterparties.

Operational Credit Risk
Operational credit risk mainly relates to tenants of the 
Group. Rental debtors owed are monitored on a weekly 
basis and the recovery of rental debtors is coordinated 
through a centralised income team. The Group’s policy 
for providing for bad and doubtful debts is included in 
Note 1 – Group Accounting Policies. Note 21 provides 
further detail of the Group’s rental debtor position. 

Sales Ledger debtors
Group gross sales ledger debtors due as at 31 March 
2015 totalled £3.6m (2014: £3.3m). The amounts 
owed were as follows, and no impairment has been 
recognised for these balances:

 GROUP
 2015 2014 
  £’000 £’000
Less than 30 days  3,522 3,264
30 to 60 days 35 22
60 to 90 days 1 2
Over 90 days 21 –
 3,579 3,288
Other debtors 9,040 7,349
Total other debtors (note 21) 12,619 10,637

Price Risk
This risk applies to any listed investments that are held 
with the Charities Official Investment Fund. Listed 
investments are exposed to fluctuations in market value 
that are outside the control of the Group. This risk is 
mitigated by seeking appropriate investment advice from 
recognised and reputable investment advisors as to how 
best to invest these funds.

Capital Risk Management
The Group derives its capital balances from share capital 
(note 29) and reserves (note 30). The revaluation reserve 
balance is entirely governed by market rates for listed 
investments. The revenue reserve is largely formed of 
Group surpluses and deficits from each year since the 
Group’s formation. 

None of these capital balances has significant degree of 
active management, other than in the case of current 
year income and expenditure that contributes to revenue 
reserves.

Concentration Risk
Concentration risk is defined as the risk associated with 
a reliance on transactions that carry a similar risk profile. 
Management determines concentrations of risk through 
its standard risk management procedures, as detailed in 
the Operating and Financial Review and Internal Controls 
Assurance. 

Management considers the Group’s main concentration 
of risk to be within rent and service charge arrears. The 
shared characteristic of this concentration is the social 
demographic of the client base that can, to some extent, 
be linked to lower credit quality. However, the arrears 
arise from a number of types of tenancy, rental, 
sheltered housing, supported housing, care homes, 
students, commercial customers and shared ownership.
A reduced level of risk is associated with certain tenure 
types such as shared ownership. 
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38. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis
Financial instruments affected by market risk include 
borrowings and derivative financial instruments. The 
following analysis illustrates the sensitivity to changes in 
the key market variable, being UK interest rates, on our 
financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis 
that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating 
interest rates of the debt and derivatives portfolio are all 
constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in 
place at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, respectively. 
A sensitivity analysis is not prepared in relation to the 
sinking fund investment that is offset by the loan. A 
reasonably possible change in prices is unlikely to result 
in a material change in fair value of equity instruments.
The following assumptions were made in calculating the 
sensitivity analysis:

• The balance sheet sensitivity to interest rates relates 
only to derivative financial instruments and available-
for-sale investments, as debt and other deposits are 
carried at amortised cost and so their carrying value 
does not change as interest rates move; 

• The sensitivity of accrued interest to movements in 
interest rates is calculated on net floating rate 
exposures on debt, deposits and derivative 
instruments; 

• Changes in the carrying value of derivatives from 
movements in interest rates designated as cash flow 
hedges are assumed to be recorded fully within equity;

• Changes in the carrying value of derivative financial 
instruments not in hedging relationships only affect the 
income statement; 

• All other changes in the carrying value of derivative 
financial instruments designated as hedges are fully 
effective with no impact on the income statement; 

• The floating leg of any swap or any floating rate debt is 
treated as not having any interest rate already set, 
therefore a change in interest rates affects a full 12 
month period for the accrued interest portion of the 
sensitivity calculations.

Using the above assumptions, the following table shows 
the illustrative impact on the income and expenditure 
account and items that are recognised directly in equity 
that would result from reasonably possible movements 
in the UK interest rates.

 GROUP
UK interest rates  2015 2014 
– 0.50% movement £’000 £’000

Surplus/(deficit) in income and  
expenditure account – floating  
rate debt 3,680 2,214
(Deficit)/surplus in income and  
expenditure account – FRS26 (401) (11,881)
Surplus/(deficit) in income and  
expenditure account – total  3,279 9,667
Impact on balance sheet 
– cash flow hedge reserves 2,614 2,237

The impact to the income and expenditure account 
and cash flow hedge reserve in the above table is an 
estimate based on the best information available. 

50 basis points is used to assess the sensitivity of 
financial instruments in line with the Group’s policy of 
assessing volatility of hedging instrument. 50 basis 
points is deemed reasonable as it is in line with the 
Group’s assessment of the economic climate. 
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If you would like this document in another language or format,  
such as large print, Braille, CD or audio tape, please contact us.

ARABIC: 

 

BENGALI: 

 

FRENCH: Si vous souhaitez obtenir ce document dans 
une autre langue ou sous un autre format ou si vous avez 
besoin des services d’un interprète, veuillez nous contacter.

ITALIAN: Se desidera ricevere questo documento in 
un’altra lingua o in un formato diverso, oppure se ha 
bisogno di un interprete, La preghiamo di contattarci.

KURDISH: 

LITHUANIAN: Jei pageidaujate šio dokumento kita kalba 
ar kitokiu formatu arba jeigu prireiktų vertėjo, maloniai 
prašome kreiptis į mus.

MANDARIN:

POLISH: Jeżeli chcieliby Państwo otrzymać ten 
dokument w innym języku lub w innym formacie albo 
jeżeli potrzebna jest pomoc tłumacza, to prosimy o 
kontakt z nami.

PORTUGUESE: Se gostaria de ter este documento  
em outro idioma ou formato, ou se necessita de um 
intérprete, contacte-nos.

PUNJABI:

SOMALI: Haddii aad dokomantigan ku rabtid luqad ama 
hab kale, ama haddii aad u baahantahay tarjubaan, 
fadlan nala soo xiriir.

SPANISH: Póngase en contacto con nosotros si desea 
obtener este documento en otro idioma o formato, o si 
necesita los servicios de un intérprete.

TURKISH: Bu belgenin Türkçe’sini veya Türkçe  
bilen birisinin size yardιmcι olmasιnι istiyorsanιz  
bize başvurabilirsiniz.

VIETNAMESE: Nếu quí vị muốn tài liệu này được ấn 
hành bằng ngôn ngữ khác hay định dạng khác hoặc  
nếu quí vị cần người phiên dịch, xin quí vị vui lòng liên  
hệ với chúng tôi. 

For text relay from a text phone add 18001 before the number you
want to call or to use Text phone dial 020 8297 7501



If you would like more information about 
The Hyde Group, please contact:

The Hyde Group
30 Park Street

London SE1 9EQ
Tel: 020 3207 2600

www.hyde-housing.co.uk


